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Management’s statement on the consolidated financial

statements
The Management has today discussed and authorized for issue the consolidated financial

statements and the consolidated annual report and has signed the consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated annual report on behalf of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. We consider that the
accounting policies used are appropriate and that the consolidated financial statements thus
give a true and fair view,

We recommend the consolidated financial statements to be approved at the Annual General
Meeting.

Vilnius, 19 August 2008

Management:

Py
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"KPMG Baltics", UAB Telefonas +370 5 2102600
Vytauto g. 12 Telefaksas +370 5 2102659
LT 08118 Vilnius El. pastas vilnius@kpmg.It
Lietuva/Lithuania Internetas www.kpmg.|t

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of AB Hanner

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AB Hanner, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes, set out on pages 6-46.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. Except as described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, we conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting principles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Basis for the qualified opinion

UAB Avestis Capital, the equity accounted investee of AB Hanner, has acquired controlling
interest in UAB Avesko Keliai, the company holding shares in UAB Siauliu Plentas group.
UAB Avestis Capital accounted the investment in UAB Avesko Keliai at acquisition cost of
LTL 26,310 thousand as at 31 December 2007. In our opinion, when preparing consolidated
financial statements the investment should have been evaluated following the equity method
in order to report AB Hanner share of results in associates and joint ventures fairly. There
were no practicable procedures we could perform to estimate impact of the possible
adjustments to the net result for the year 2007 as well as the total assets and the equity as at
31 December 2007.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible impact of the matter referred to in the basis for
qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of AB Hanner as at 31 December 2007, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union.

Report on legal and other regulatory requirements

Furthermore, we have read the consolidated annual report for the year 2007 set out on pages
47-53 of the consolidated financial statements and have not identified any material
inconsistencies between the financial information included in the consolidated annual report
and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007,

Vilnius, 19 August 2008
KPMG Baltics, UAB

T
“Domantas Dabulis

artner
Certified Auditor



Consolidated balance sheet

as at 31 December

In thousand Litas

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment property

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Other receivables

Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Investment available-for-sale
Cash and cash equivalents

Total curremnt assefs

TOTAL ASSETS

AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

Note 2007 20006
7 115,552 3,268
8 299,560 267,000
10 59,819 33,492
11 27,659 58,464
21 577 130
503,167 362,354
12 325,895 223,453
13 138,624 104,444
14 24,573
15 12,803 20,702
477,322 373,172
980,489 735,526

The notes, set out on pages 12 to 46, are an integral part of these financial statements.



Consolidated balance sheet (cont’d)

as at 31 December

In thousand Litas Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves

Share capital 16
Legal reserve 17
Fair value reserve 18

Cumulative transiation difference
Retained earnings

Total equity atiributable to equity holders of the
Company
Minority interest

Total equity

Noun-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 19
Bond liabilities 20
Trade and other payables 23
Deferred tax liability 21

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 19
Trade and other payables 23
Provisions 27

Corporate income tax payable

Total current Habilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes, set out on pages 12 to 46, are an integral part of these financial statements.

AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

2007 2006
16,000 16,000
1,600 1,600
3,901
34 (1,611)
426,260 367,473
443,894 387,363
3,701 1,366
447,595 388,729
329,069 263,470
36,370 ;
282 2,992
43,510 30,832
409,231 297,294
32,595 17,372
76,643 26,013
7,180 4,528
7,245 1,590
123,663 49,503
532,894 346,797
980,489 738,526




Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December

In thousand Litas

Revenue

Net valuation gains on investment property
Impairment of assets

Direct property operating expenses

Cost of coal

Services of sub-contractors

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits

Associates and joint ventures results

Other expenses

Result from operating activities
Finance income
Finance expenses

Profit before tax
Corporate income tax

Net profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest

Net profit for the year

Basic earnings/ per share
Diluted earnings per share

AR Hanner

Consolidated financial statements for the year ended

Notes

25

26

27
10
28

29
30

31

31 December 2007

2007 2006
203,703 152,606
32,560 58,952
(41
(9,826) (9,455)
(69,266) (66,083)
(67,255) (33,711)
(536) (470)
(9,081) (6,108)
5,080 (8,242)
(5,494) (6,272)
79,885 81,176
28,175 15,607
(38,262) (19,205)
69,798 77,578
_ (10,580) L15,084)
58,818 62,494
58,787 64,283
3] (1,789)
58,818 62,494
3.67 4.0
3.67 4,02

The notes, set out on pages 12 1o 46, are an integral part of these financial statements.



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

In thousand Litas

Capital and reserves at
I January 2006
Acquisition of
subsidiaries

Revaluation on available-
for-sale investments

Net profit (loss) for the
year 2006

Currency translation
differences

Capital and reserves at
31 December 2006
Revaluation on available-
for-sale investments
Acquisition of
subsidiaries and minority
interest

Net profit (loss) for the
year 2007

Currency translation
differences

Capital and reserves at
31 December 2007

Cumulative Total

Share Legal  Fairvalue transiation  Retained  shareholders’  Minority Total

capital rescrve rescrve  difference  carnings equity interest equity
16,000 1,600 ¢ 1,335 303,190 322,125 3,011 325,136
165 165
3,901 3,901 3,901
- - - - 64,283 64,283 (1,789 62,494
- - - (2,946) - (2,946} A (2,567}
16,000 1,600 3,901 (1,611) 367,473 387,363 1,366 388,729
(3,90D) (3,901 (3,901
2,666 2,666
58,787 58,787 31 58,818
1,645 1,645 (362) 1,283
16,000 1,600 0 34 426,260 443,89 3,701 447,595

The notes, set out on pages 12 to 46, are an integral part of these financial statements.



AB Hanner

Consolidated financial statements for the yvear
ended 31 December 2007

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December
In thousand Litas

Net result (profit)

Result of corrections of fundamental errors

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Interest expense

Interest income

Loss on discounting of Joans and other receivables
Loss (gain) on disposal of available for sale assets
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets

Loss (gain) from fair value adjustment on investment
property

Loss {gain) on disposal of investments

Share of (profit) loss of associates and joint ventures
Change in provisions

Income tax expenses

Net cash inflow from ordinary activities
before any change in working capital
Change in inventories

Change in frade and other receivables
Change in trade and other payables

Net cash inflow from ordinary activities
Interest paid
Profit tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Notes

30
29

2007 2006
58,818 64,494
0 7,931
555 470
19,324 9,358
(6,780) {10,450)
(337) -
(6,160) -
384 659
(32,560) (58,952)
(14,222) (3,642)
(5,080) 5,663
12,158 11,671
10,980 15,084
37,080 40,286
(93,930) (120,070}
(8,096) (3,166)
31,801 39,056
(33,145) (43,894)
(15,325) (9,358)
(5,460) (17.492)
(53,930) (70,744)

10



AB Hanner

Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Consolidated statement of cash flows (cont’d)

for the year ended 31 December

In thousand Litas

Interest received

Purchase of property, piant and equipment

Additions to investment property

Investments {o subsidiaries

Investments fo associates and joint ventures

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchase of short —term investments (AFS)

Disposals of joint ventures

Loan repayments received

Loans granted

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Proceeds from issue of bonds
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing, net

Net cash inflow/outflow from operating activities,
investing activities and financing

Exchange gains on cash and equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note 2007 2000
5,798 10,450
7 {10,239) (1,786)
8 0 (1,805)
9 (62,028) (59,621)
10 (38,013 (7,774)
23,949 -
(20,672)
35,475 3,843
60,463 14,219
(14,779 (7,412)
(20,374) (70,558)
20 34,528
147,735 141,113
(116,847) (15,424)
65,416 125,689
(8,888) (15,613)
989 (5,600}
20,702 41,915
12,803 20,702

The notes, set out on pages 12 to 46, are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Reporting entity

AB Hanner (hereinafter the Company) was registered as a closed joint stock company under
the laws of the Republic of Lithuania on 27 July 1995. On 8 September 2005 the Company
changed its legal status to joint stock company.

Mr. Arvydas Avulis is the 100% owner of AB Hanner,

The Company is domiciled in Lithuania. The address of its registered office is Konstitucijos
Ave. 7, Vilnius.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and the Group’s interest in
associates and jointly controlled entities.

The Group is a property development group with a major porifolio in Lithuania, Ukraine,
Romania and Latvia. It is primarily involved in development of real estate projects and
leasing out investiment property under operating lease.

The number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2007 amounted to 598
(31 December 2006: 171).

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union.

The Management has authorized the financial statements for issue on 19 August 2008 and
signed the financial statements on behalf of the Company.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for investment property and available-for-sale financial assets, which are measured at fair
value.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Litas, being the functional currency of
the Company. All financial information presented in Litas has been rounded to the nearest
thousand,

12



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Basis of preparation (cont‘d)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs, as adopted by the
European Union, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and {uture periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs, as adopted by the European
Union, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 4.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the
Company.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company
has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entily so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
unti] the date that control ceases.

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control,
over the f{inancial and operating policies. Joint ventures are those entities over which
activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions. Associates and joint
veniures are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees).



AB Hanner
Consolidated financiol statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation {cont’d)

Associates and joint ventures (cont'd)

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the income and expenses
of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those
of the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the
date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When the Group’s share of losses
exceeds its inferest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that inferest
(including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments
on behalf of the investee.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the balance sheet date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognized in the
consolidated income statement,

Financial instruments
The Company does not use derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2007.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities,
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for
instruments not at fair value through income statement, any directly atiributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as
described below.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets and are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets except for maturities greater than 12 months. Receivables are
initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment, if any. Short-term
receivables are not discounted.

14



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instraments (cont’d)

Non-derivative financial instruments (cont’d)

Certain investments in equity securities and debt securities are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognized directly in equity. When an
investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or
loss.

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value less direct costs related to the occurrence of
respective loan and other liabilities. Subsequent to initial recognition, liabilities are stated at
amortized cost on an effective interest method basis. Trade payables are initially recognized
at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Short-term liabilities are not
discounted.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment

Reclassification to investment property

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment propetty is accounted for as
property, plant and equipment until construction or development is complete, at which time
it is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain or loss arising
on remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss.

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied fo investment property, the
property is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising
on remeasurement is recognized directly in equity. Any loss is recognized immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of
the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

* Buildings and constructions 8-15 years
+«  Motor vehicles 6 years
s Other assels 2-6  years

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives are reassessed annually.
Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both. Investment property is measured at fair value with any change therein recognized
in income statement.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting,

Leased assets

Leases, in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired by way of finance lease are
stated at an amount equal to the lower of fair value and the present value of the minimum
lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
Josses.

Inventories

Inventories (trading properties) are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition. The cost of development projects of trading properties comprises construction
costs and other direct and cost related to property development, but excludes borrowing
costs, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

The cost of inventories is determined based on FIFO (First-In, First-Out) principle.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.

16



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For the assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance shect date.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Company’s receivables carried at amortized cost is calculated
as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at the initial recognition of these
financial assets). Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of receivables carried at amortized cost is reversed if the
subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

Liabilities

Liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less direct costs related to occurrence of
respective loan and other liabilities. Subsequent to initial recognition, liabilities are stated at

amortized cost on an effective interest method basis, Short-term liabilities are not
discounted.



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies {(cont’d)
Provisions
A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive

obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation,

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Revenue

Sales of trading properties

Revenue from the sale of trading properties is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of allowances and discounts, Revenue is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
the consideration is probable and there is no continuing management involvement with the
properties.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of
the total rental income, over the term of the lease.

Services rendered

Revenue from the services rendered is recognized in the income statement as the services are
rendered.

Lease payments

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as 10 produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

18



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on loans granted and funds invested, dividend
income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and foreign currency
gains. Interest income is recognized as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognized on the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, impairment losses recognized on
financial assets and foreign currency losses. All borrowing costs are recognized in the
consolidated income statement using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognized in the consolidated income statement except to the extent that it relates to the
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not
provided for: initial recognition of assets or liabilities that did not affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit, and differences relating to the investments in the subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Earnings per share

The Group presents data of basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of
the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. During reporting periods there were no any dilutive
potential ordinary shares issued by the Group.

19



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing
related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments. The Group’s primary format for
segment reporting is based on geographical segments.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yef
effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2007, and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements:

e Revised IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (effective as of 1 January 2009). The revised
Standard will clarifies the definition of vesting conditions and non-vesting conditions.
Based on the revised Standards failure to meet non-vesting conditions will generally
result in treatment as a cancellation. The revised IFRS 2 is not relevant to the Group’s
operations as the Group does not have any share-based compensation plans.

» Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009). The scope of the revised Standard has been amended and the
definition of a business has been expanded. Revised IFRS 3 is relevant to the Group.
However, the Group has not yet completed its analysis of the impact of the revised
Standard.

¢ JFRS 8§ Operating Segments (effective as of 1 January 2009). The Standard requires
segment disclosure based on the components of the entity that management monitors in
making decisions about operating matters. Operating segments are components of an
entity about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance. The Group has not yet completed its analysis of the impact of
the new Standard.

o The revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective as of | January 2009),
The revised Standard requires information in financial statements to be aggregated on the
basis of shared characteristics and introduces a statement of comprehensive income.
Items of income and expense and components of other comprehensive income may be
presented either in a single statement of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two
separate statemenis {(a separate income statement followed by a statement of
comprehensive income). The Group is currently evaluating whether to present a single
statement of comprehensive income, or two separate statements.

+ Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective as of 1 January 2009). The revised Standard
will require the capitalization of borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale. The Group has not yet completed
its analysis of the impact of the revised Standard.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet
effective (cont’d)

» Revised IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). In the revised Standard the term minority
interest has been replaced by non-controlling interest, and is defined as "the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, fo a parent”. The revised Standard also
amends the accounting for non-controlling interest, the loss of control of a subsidiary,
and the allocation of profit or loss and other comprehensive income between the
controlling and non-controlling interest. The Group has not yet completed its analysis of
the impact of the revised Standard.

e IFRIC 1} IFRS 2 — Company and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007). The Interpretation requires a share-based
payment arrangement in which an entity receives goods or services as consideration for
its own equity-instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction, regardless of how the equity instruments needed are obtained. It also
provides guidance on whether share-based payment arrangements, in which suppliers of
goods or services of an entity are provided with equity instruments of the entity’s
parent, should be accounted for as cash-settled or equity-settled in the entity’s financial
statements. IFRIC 1 is not relevant to the Group’s operations as the Group has not
entered into any share-based payments arrangements,

e IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (effective from 1 January 2008). The
Interpretation provides guidance to private sector entities on certain recognition and
measurement issues that arise in accounting for public-to-private service concession
arrangements. IFRIC 12 is not relevant to the Group’s operations.

e IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes {effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2008). The Interpretation explains how entities that grant loyalty award
credits to customers who buy other goods or services should account for their
obligations to provide free or discounted goods or services (‘awards’) to customers who
redeem those award credits. Such entities are required to allocate some of the proceeds
of the initial sale fo the award credits and recognise these proceeds as revenue only
when they have fulfilled their obligations. The Group does not expect the Interpretation
to have any impact on the financial statements.

e IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements (hereinafter MFR) and their interactions (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2008), The interpretation addresses:

1) when refunds or reductions in future contributions should be regarded as available in
accordance with paragraph 58 of IAS 19;

2) how a MFR might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions; and

3) when a MFR might give rise to the liability. No additional liability need be
recognised by the employer under IFRIC 14 unless the contributions that are payable
under the minimum funding requirement cannot be returned to the company. The Group
has not yet completed its analysis of the impact of the new interpretation.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

An external, independent valuation company, having appropriate recognized professional
qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of property being valued, values the
Group’s investment property portfolio on an annual basis. The fair values are based on market values,
being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuations are prepared by considering the
aggregate of the estimated cash flows expected to be received from renting out the property. A yield
that reflects the specific risks inherent in the net cash flows then is applied to the net annual cash flows
1o arrive at the property valuation.

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants actually in occupation or responsibie for
meeting lease commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting vacant accommodation, and the
market’s general perception of their creditworthiness; the allocation of maintenance and insurance
responsibilities between the company and the lessee; and the remaining economic life of the property.

Impairment losses on receivables

The Company reviews its receivables to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Company makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of receivables before the decrease can be identified
with an individual receivable in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of debtors, national or local economic
conditions that influence the Company of the receivables.

The management evaluates probable cash flows from the debtors based on historical loss experience
related to the debtors with a similar credit risk. Methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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Financial risk management

Company has exposure to the following risks:

e credit,
e liquidity,
« market,

e operational,
e capital management.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these annual accounts.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and conmstructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables
from customers. The risk is reduced by the fact that related parties are partially or fully controlled by
the Group.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade and other receivables. This allowance for impairment includes only specific loss,
refated to individually significant trade and other receivables. The balances of trade and other
receivables are not significant, and the actual loss during 2007 was not significant as well.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2007 was:

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Cash and cash equivalents, net 12,803 20,702
Trade and other receivables 166,283 162,908
Total 246,566 183,610
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Financial risk management (cont’d)

Credit risk (cont 'd)

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by
geographic region could be specified as follows:

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Local market 59,854 47,151
Euro-zone countries 41,670 22,728
Russia 7,241 -
Belarus 385 -
Ukraine 57,133 93,029
Total 166,283 162,908

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Marke! risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates
will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Interest rate visk

The Group’s borrowings are subject to variable interest rates related to LIBOR. As at 31 December
2007, the Group did not use financial instruments to hedge its exposure to the cash flow risk related to
debt instruments with variable interest rates or price risk related to debt instruments with fixed interest
rates.

A change in average annual interest rate for the Company’s borrowings by 1 percentage point would

have increased (decreased) the interest expenses and the profit for the year ended 31 December 2007
by approximately 3,211 thousand Litas.
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5  Financial risk management (cont’d)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company is Litas (LTL). The Group faces foreign currency risk on
purchases and borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than Litas and EUR. The risk
related to transactions in EUR is considered to be insignificant as the Lithuanian Litas is pegged to
BUR at a fixed rate. The most significant currency exchange risks as at 31 December 2006 and 31
December 2007 are related to the loans granted to the related parties in USD.

The Group' foreign currency exchange risk has been concentrated in the below provided items of the

balance sheet:

31/1272006

[n thousand Other

Litas USDb EUR LTL LVL  (UAH)

Receivables 76,421 16,571 47,151 22,765

Cash and cash

equivalents 984 7,253 10,751 1,714

Financial

liabilities (273,842) {7,000}

Payables (20,980} -3615

Total currency

exchange risk in

the balance

sheet 77,405 (257,271) 23,922 20,864
31/12/2007

In thousand Other (UAH,

Litas USD EUR LTL LVL RON, BYR)

Receivables 35,921 50,173 49,698 2,473 28,018

Cash and cash

equivalents 143 365 9,433 664 2,198

Financial and

bond liabilities (17,269 (373,764) {7,000)

Payables (3,446) (65,716) (7,261) (7,746)

Total currency

exchange risk in

the balance

sheet 18,795 (326,672) (13,585)  (4,124) 22,470
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5  Financial risk management (cont’d)

Currency risk (cont'd)

Below the significant currency exchange rates applied during the period (in respect of functional
currency) are presented:

Average rates of Average rates of
2007 2006
EUR 3,4528 3,4528
LV 4,9324 4,9594
usD 2,5230 2,7513

Capital management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base, in comparison with the borrowed means, so as
to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Board also seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the security afforded by a sound capital position.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties on an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced
or liguidation sale.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models as appropriate.

Carrying amount of trade amounts receivable, amounts payable and short-term credit lines is close to
their fair value. The fair value of the long-term debt is based on the quoted market price for the same
or similar issues or on the current rates available for debt with the same maturity profile. The fair value
of non-current foans, borrowings and other payables with variable interest rates approximates their
carrying amounts.
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Primary reporting format — geographical segments

AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

The home-country of the Company - which is also the main operating company — is Lithuania. The
Group has four reportable segments: Lithuania, Ukraine, Latvia and Romania.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

In thousand Litas

Total revenue

Resuit of associates and joint

ventures

Result from operating
activities

Finance income
Finance expenses
Profit before tax
Corporate income tax

Net profit for the year

Segments’ assets and liabilities at 31 December 2007

In thousand Litas

Assets
Joint ventures

Total segments’ assets

Deferred income tax assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Provisions

Total segments’ liabilities
Loans and bonds

Deferred tax liability
Corporate income tax payable

Total liabilities

Other information
Investment into fixed assets
Depreciation

Lithuania Ukraine Latvia Romania Other Group
202,610 108 88 897 203,703
9 {1,558) 3,056 3,951 -,379 5,079

(383)

76,011 (3,156) 3,367 4,046 79,885
16,925 14,222 31,147
(36,347) (1,205) (947) (2,735) (41,234)
56,589 9,861 2,420 1,311 (383) 69,798
(11,465) 485 (10,980)
45,124 9,861 2,420 1,796 (383) 58,818
Lithuania Ukraine Latvia Romania Other Group
686,606 124,468 82,306 26,555 98 §20,093
36,469 9,330 7,365 6,313 342 59,819
723,135 133,798 89,671 32,868 440 979,912
16 561 577
723,151 133,798 89,671 33429 440 980,489
48,566 18,584 7,321 2,342 112 76,925
3,533 3,647 7,180
48,566 22,117 7,321 5,989 112 84,105
303,079 17,269 77,686 398,034
43,510 43,510
7,245 7,245
402,400 39,386 85,007 5,989 112 532,894
9,668 197 302 59 13 10,239
405 51 84 15 555
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Segment information (cont*d)

Primary reporting format — geographical segments (cont‘d)

The segment resuits for the year ended 31 December 2006 are as follows;

In thousand Litas Lithuania Ukraine Latvia Romania Group
Total revenue 150,749 1,530 - 327 152,606
Associates and joint ventures

fosses (158) (6,382) (831) (871) (8,242)
Resuit from operating

activities 94,273 (11,426) (814) (858) 81,175
Finance income 15,584 23 - - 15,607
Finance expenses (19,782) (192) (55) 824 {19,205)
Profit before tax 90,075 (11,595) - -(34) 71,577
Corporate incone tax (15,054) - - (30} (15,084)
Net profit for the year 75,021 (11,595) (869) (64) 62,493

Other sergment information
Depreciation 417 27 25 1 470

Segments’ assets and liabilities

In thousand Litas Lithuania ~ Ukraine Latvia Romania Group

Assets 558,870 64,895 53,869 24,270 701,904
Joint ventures 4,974 23,461 4,951 106 33,492
Total segments’ assets 563,844 88,356 58,820 24,376 735,396
Deferred income tax assets 15 - - 115 130
Total assets 563,859 88,356 58,820 24,491 735,526
Liabilities 20,725 8,120 104 57 29,006
Provisions 18 2,388 649 1,473 4,528
Total segments’ liabilities 20,743 10,508 753 1,530 33,534
Loans 280,841 - - - 280,841
Deferred tax lability 30,832 - - - 30,832
Corporate income tax payable 1,443 - - 147 1,590
Total liabilities 333,859 10,508 753 1,677 346,797

Other segment information

Investment property 1,805 - - - 1,805
Depreciation 417 27 25 1 470
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Segment information (cont’d)

Secondary reporting format — business segments

AB Hanner
Consolidated financial siatements for the year ended
31 December 2007

The Group has three business segments - property development, trading coal and cardboard

production. Property development includes building residential areas, office sets, buildings for other

commercial purposes as well rent of offices and buildings for commercial purposes, and private capital

investments.

The segment resulis for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

In thousand Litas

Segments’ assets

Associates and joint ventures losses

Total segments’ assets
Deferred income tax assets
Total asscts

Liabilities
Provisions

Total segments’ liabilities
Loans and bonds

Deferred tax liability
Corporate incorne tax payable

Total liabilities
External revenue

Cther information
Investment into fixed assets

29

Property Cardbeard

development Trading coal production Group
796,831 23,283 99,979 920,093
59,819 59,819
856,650 23,283 99,979 979,912
577 577
857,227 23,283 99,979 980,489
34,201 2,068 20,655 76,924
7,179 7,179
61,382 2,068 20,655 84,105
350,951 7,000 40,083 398,034
36,794 6,716 43,510
4,601 2,644 7,245
453,728 15,784 63,382 532,894
131,314 72,389 203,703
10,095 144 10,239
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Segment information (cont’d)

Secondary reporting format — business segments (cont'd)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows:

In: thousand Litas

Segmients’ assets
Associates and joint veniures losses

Total segments” assets
Deferred income tax assets
Total asseis

Liabitities

Provisions

Total segments’ liabilities
L.oans

Deferred tax liability
Corporate income tax payable

Total liabilities
External revenue
Other information

Real estate
Investment property

AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

FProperty

development Trading coal Group
675,319 26,585 701,904
33,492 - 33,492
708,811 26,585 735,396
130 - 130
708,941 20,585 735,526
28,475 531 29,0006
4,528 - 4,528
33,003 531 33,534
273,841 7,000 280,841
30,832 - 30,832
1,498 92 1,590
339,174 7,623 346,797
84,667 67,939 152,606
718 I 719
1,805 - 1,805
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Property, plant and equipment

In thousand Litas Buildings and
other
constructions Vehicles Other fixed assets Total

1 January 2006

Acquisition cost 1,249 1,085 817 3,151
Accumulated depreciation (251) (452) (237N (940)
Closing net book amount 998 633 580 2,211
Year ended 31 December 2006

Opening net book amount 998 633 580 2,211
Additions 1,147 76 563 1,786
Disposals / Write-offs (73) (79) (¢! (167
Transfers 109 ' (201) (92)
Depreciation charge (89) (138) (243) (470)
Closing net book amount 2,690 492 686 3,268

31 December 2006

Acquisition cost 2,430 839 1,522 4,791
Accumulated depreciation (340) (347) (836) {1,523)
Net book amount 2,090 492 686 3,268
Year ended 31 December 2007

Opening net book amount 2,090 492 686 3,208
Additions &.160 437 642 10,239
Additions from jodint ventures 58,034 1,220 43,141 102,995
Disposals / Write-offs (192) (170) (22) (384)
Reclassifications

Depreciation charge (93) (199) (263) (555)
Currency exchange loss (gain} 1y (1
Closing net book amount 69,599 1,780 44,115 115,552
31 December 2607

Acquisition cost 70,224 2,496 45,247 118,025
Accumulated depreciation {625) (716) (1,132) (2,473)
Net book amount 69,599 1,780 44,115 115,552

In accordance with the bank loan agreements, as at 31 December 2007 the Group has pledged its
property, land and equipment, the balance value of which amounts to 52,413 tLitas. As at 31
December 2006 there were no assets pledged.
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31 December 2007

In thousand Litas 2007 2006
Investment property

At beginning of the year 267,000 206,643
Subsequent expenditure - additions 1,805
TFransfer from property, plant and equipments -
Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment property 32,560 58,952
Disposal (460)
Total 299,560 267,000

As at 31 December 2007 all the investment properties have been pledged as security for bank

borrowings (Note 19).

The investment properties as at 31 December 2007 were valued by independent qualified valuators
UAB Ober-Haus based on prices that existed in an active market as at 31 December 2007,

Acquisition of subsidiaries

30 November 2007 AB Hanner (by acquiring 100% of shares of the controlling company UAB
Avesko) indirectly acquired 95.6% of shares of AB Klaipédos kartonas. The main activity of AB
Klaipédos kartonas is the production of recycled boardcard. The main production of the company
includes testliner and fluting — raw materials for the production of corrugated cardboard.

The impact of the acquisition on AB Hanner consolidated assets and liabilities is as follows:

Adjustments Recognized
Balance value before to the fair acquisition
Klaipédos kartonas acquisition value value
In thousand Litas
Property, plant and equipment 70,393 32,602 102,995
Non-tangible assets (951) 951
Non-current financial assets 1,844 1,844
Inventories 8,512 8,512
Trade and other receivables 17,110 17,110
Cash and cash equivalents 3,070 3,070
Loans (39,892) (39,892)
Deferred tax liabilities (1,826) (4,890) (6,716)
Trade and other payables (18,829) (18,829)
Recognized assets and liabilities, net 39,432 28,663 68,094
Acquired share 95.6%
Acquired assets, net 65,098
Goodwill accumulated on the
acquisition 0
Acquisition cost paid in cash 65,098
Acquired cash (3,070)
Cash expenses during the acquisition 62,028
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Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d)
Balance values before the acquisition were determined just after the acquisition. The Company carried out
an independent valuation of property, plant and equipment, and accordingly adjusted the fair values of these

asset groups. The values of assets and liabilities recognized on acquisition are their calculated fair values.

If the Group had acquired shares of UAB Avesko, controlling AB Klaipédos Kartonas, as of | January
2007, the profit would have been increased by 15,582 tLitas.

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Investment in associates and joint ventures

At the beginning of the year 33,492 31,105
Establishment of joint ventures 787 36
Acquisitions of share of joint ventures 8,991 7,316
Contribution to share capital of joint ventures 28,235 422
Share of loss - net* 5,080 (5,663)
Reclassification to associates ir joint ventures 6,501

Disposals (26,2200 (201
Translation differences 398 {1,973)
Provision for net liabilities of associates

(Note 22) 2,652 2,450
At the end of the year 59,819 33,492

* Share of the loss afier tax of the joint ventures

On 27 February 2007, the Company together with the partner UAB Girteka established OO0 Shusary
Logistik in the Russian Federation. The Company holds 50% of the authorised capital.

On 2 May 2007, the Company together with the partner Kestutis Mickus, established OO0 Hanner
SPB Development in the Russian Federation The Company holds 50% of the authorised capital.

On 9 November 2007, UAB H5 Development was established and registered, in which AB Hanner
holds 50 per cent of the parts in the authorised capital of the established company.

On 1 June 2007, an agreement re purchase-sales of parts was signed. According to the agreement
signed, AB Hanner acquired 50% of the parts of the limited liability company Pidpriemstvo Vaizbunas
established in the Republic of Ukraine. The authorised capital of the limited liability company
Pidpriemstvo Vaizbunas amounts to 27,000 UAH.

On 2 May 2007, AB Hanner acquired shares of UAB Santariskiy Namai owned by UAB Hanner
Development. On 22 May 2007, AB Hanner and UAB Eika decided to increase the authorised capital
of UAB Santariskiy Namai by 4,990,000.00 Litas up to 5,000,000.00 Litas. AB Hanner and UAB Eika
hold 50 per cent (each) of the shares of the mentioned company.

On 22 March 2007, the Company signed an agreement on sales of parts related to ZAO Nest Hanner
17,535,000 ordinary intangible shares, making 50% of the authorised capital.

On 11 May 2007, agreement No. 11/05 re purchase-sales of parts in the authorised capital was signed.
According fo the agreement mentioned, AB Hanner sold 39.99999% of parts in the authorised capital
of the limited liability company established in the Repubiic of Ukraine JudZin (in Russian - OO0
IOmxun), company code 31303824, address — Generolo Naumovo Str. 23B, Kiev, Ukraine
(hereinafter - QOO Judzin).
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10 Investment in associates and joint ventures (cont‘d)

On 4 September 2007, an agreement of purchase-sales of shares was signed. As to the mentioned
agreement, AB Hanner sold 533 units of the shares of UAB Gudeliy Silas established in Lithuania,
comprising 9.892 per cent from the total shares of the company UAB Gudeliy Silas. Currently AB
Hanner holds 2,161 shares of UAB Gudeliy Silas, comprising 40.1076 per cent from the total shares.
The authorised capital of UAB Gudeliy Silas amounts to 5,388,000.00 Litas and is divided into 5,388
shares. The nominal value per share is 1,000 Litas.

Results, assets and liabilities of the joint ventures, all of which are unlisted, are as follows:

11

Country of % Interest
Name incorporation Assels Liabilities Revenue  Profit/ (loss) held

UAB Gudeliy &ilas Lithuania 35,630 30,752 0 (499) 40.2%
UAB Avestis Capital * Lithvania 33,874 701 67 1,016 99%
UAB Santarizkiy namai Lithuania 48,853 45,546 0 (1,591} 50%
UAR H5 Development Lithuania 9 I 0 (3) 50%
Puces Birzs Latvia 73,631 71,372 16,872 3,494 50%
SIA Equilibrium Latvia 12,979 467 4,578 2,592 50%
Carol Park Residence SRL Romania 86,161 93,455 0 (8,015) 50%
Europe Group Hanner SRL Romania 61,857 49,231 53,749 16,466 S0%
QOO Predprijatie Vaizbunas Ukraine 22 10 21 1 S0%
000 Sugary Logistik Russia 27,636 26,952 0 (778) 50%
000 SPB Development Russia
Logistik 603 604 378 (2) 50%

* In accordance with the sharcholders® agreement, the decisions concerning UAB Avestis Capital are adopted
only with the approval of all the parties. Therefore, this company is not under control of the Group and the
investment is classified as investment to associates and joint ventures.

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Other receivables
Long-term loans to associates and joint ventures

{Note 32) 10,600 43,845
Less: provision for impairment of long-term loans to associates

and joint ventures (220) {1,325)
Lonhg-term loans to associates and joint ventures, net (Note 32) 10,380 42,520
Long-term loans to other related parties (Note 32} 1,397 10,6806
Long-term loans lo third parties 1,490 4,184
Long-term loans to Mr. Avulis 2,223 £37
Other receivables 12,169 937
Less: provisien for impairment of other receivables

Total 27,659 58,464

Loans to associates and joint ventures were granted with repayment terms ranging from 2 to 5 years.
The annual interest rate ranges from 2.5 to 14 per cent. The average interest rate as at 31 December
2006 was 7 per cent, In the opinion of the Company’s management, the carrying amounts of the long-
term receivables approximate their fair value.
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In thousand Litas

Inventories
Development projects of trading propertics
Coal

Finished goods and raw materials for the production of paper

Other inventory

Total

31 December 2007

2007 2006
315,265 220,938
1,358 2,515
8,071
1,201
325,895 223,453

The majority of the development projects are expected to be completed during the 24 month period.

In thousand Litas

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables:

- receivables for development projects
- receivables for coal

- receivables for rent

- cardboard for goods

Total trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of doubtful trade receivables

Trade receivables, net

Short-term loans:

- loans to associates and joint ventures (Note 32}

Less: provision for impaivment for loans to associates and
Joint ventures

- loans to associates and joint venture, net (Note 32)
- loans to other related parties
- loans to other parties

Receivables loans, net

Receivables from associates

Prepayments, deferred charges and accrued income
Receivables from the State budget

Other receivables

QOther receivables

Total

2007 2006
12,139 6,366
18,018 20,214

1,569 1,221
16,349
48,075 27,801
(19) (2)
48,056 27,799
59,026 44,070
(896) (128)
58,130 43,942
6,434 202
3,300 5,358
67,864 49,502
1,163
4,928 20,437
3,855 4,365
12,758 2,341
22,704 27,143
138,624 104,444
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In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Investments available-for-sale

At beginning of the year 24,573

Additions 19,983

Net gain from fair value adjustments 4,590

Sales (24,573)

Total 0 24,5873

In thousand Litas 2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank 12,751 20,626
Cash in hand 52 75
Total cash and cash equivalents 12,803 20,701

Share capital

As at 31 December 2007, the share capital comprised of 16,000 ordinary registered shares with par
value of 1,000 Litas each. All the shares are fully paid. There were no changes in the share capital

during the year.

Legal reserve

Legal reserve amounting 1,600 thousand Litas represents non-distributable reserve, which can only be

used for offsetting future operating losses, if any.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale

financial assets until the investment is derecognized.

In thousand Litas 2007 2006
Borrowings

Current liahilities

Current portion of long-term bank borrowings 32,595 17,372

Total current liabilities 32,595 17,372

Non-current liabilities

Long-term bank borrowings 329,069 263,470

Total non-current liabilities 329,069 263,470

Total 361,664 280,842
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19  Borrowings (cont’d)

Borrowings are secured with the investment property, amounting to 299,650 tLitas (Note §8), property,
plant and equipment, amounting 52,413 tLitas (Note7), coal invetories and a part of projects under
development, amounting 316,623 tLitas (Note 12) and the shares of UAB Avesko and AB Klaipédos
Kartonas.

Weighted average interest rates effective as at 31 December (per cent) were as follows:

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Long-term bank borrowings 5.31 479

Maturity of long-term borrowings:

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

Within | year 32,595 17,372
Between | and 2 years 81,550 17,346
Between 2 and 5 years 149,705 46,706
Qver 5 years 97,814 199,417
Total 361,664 280,842

Fair value of the borrowings approximates to their carrying values.

Bonds

On 19 February 2007, the public emission of the Company*s bonds amounting to 10 million EUR and
with a term of 2 years was successfully issued. The interest rate was sef on the last day of the issue of
bonds’ emission, i.e. on 19 February 2007 and is by 2 per cent higher than the interest rates of the
standard swap agreement with a term of 2 years (4.2 per cent) (Interest Rate Swap - IRS). As at 31
December 2007, the costs of the acerued interest amounted to 1,842 thousand Litas.

Deferred income tax

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

In thousand Litas 2007 2006

At the beginning of the year (30,705) (19,625)
Change in deferred tax recognized in the income statement (8,027) (10,379}
Change in deferred tax recognized in equity 689 (689)
Acquired from joint ventures (4,890)

At the end of the year (42,933) (30,702)
Deferred income tax to be recovered after more than 12 months (42,949) (30,705}
Deferred income tax to be recovered within 12 months 16 3
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31 December 2007

Deferred income tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

In thousand L.itas

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Total

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

In thousand Litas

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2006
Credited/(charged) to the income
staternent

Credited/(charged) to equity

At 31 December 2006

Credited/(charged) to the income
statement

Credited/(charged) to equity
Acquired from joint ventures

At 31 December 2007

In thousand Litas

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2006
Credited/(charged) to the income
statement

At 31 December 2006

Credited/(charged) to the income
statement

At 31 December 2007

2007 2006

0 51

(43,510) (30,882

{43,510} (30,832)

Tangible Investments
non-current Investment available for
assets property sale Total
(599) {19,062) 0 (19,661}
146 {10,679 (10,533)
(689} (689}
(453) (29,741) (689} (30,8&3‘)‘.
97 (8,523} (8,426}
689 689
(4,890) (4,890)
(5,246) (38,204) 0 (43,510}
Off set against
Vacation reserve liabilities Net asset

36 20 16
145 (3D 114
181 (51) 130
396 51 447
577 0 877
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In thousand Litas 2007 2006
Provisions

At 1 January 4,528 2,078
Provision for share of cumulative losses in associates and joint ventures

attributable to the Group (Note 10) 2,652 2,450
Total 7,180 4,528
In thousand L.itas 2007 2006

Trade payables and other amounts payable
Non-current trade and other amounts payable

‘Frade payables for construction works 0 438
Other payables ‘ 282 2,554
Total non-current payables 282 2,992

Current irade and other amounts payable

Taxes 2,850 886
Trade payables relating to development projects 17,359 15,559
Advances 22,901 6,995
Payables for coal 1,711 197
Other payables 31,822 2,376
Total current payables 76,643 26,013
Total 76,925 29,005

Commitments and contingent labilities

Contingent liabilities — tax audits

The Tax Authorifies have carried out a full-scope tax audit at the Company for the year 2001. The tax
authorities may at any time inspect and record within 5 years subsequent to the reported tax year, and
may impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Group’s management is not aware of any
circumstances which may give rise to a potential liability to the Group in this respect.
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In thousand Litas

Revenue

Coal

Development projects
Rental income
Service charges
Other services

Total

AB Hanner
Consolidaied financial siatements for the year ended

31 December 2007

2007 2006
96,833 52,404
71,172 66,772
22,385 21,003

9,799 8,152
3,514 4,275
203,703 152,606

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out ifs investment property under operating leascs

ranges from 2 to 10 years.

The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:
In theusand Litas

No later than | year
Later than | year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Total

In thousand Litas

Direct property operating expenses

Utilities and exploitation expenses
Repair and maintenance

Land and real estate taxes

Other

Total

In thousand Litas

Employee benefit expenses

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Vacation reserve
Other costs

Total

2007 2006
22,670 24,788
106,036 97,878
51,224 18,968
179,930 141,634

2007 2006
7,076 7,336
1,064 365
1,018 872
668 682
9,826 9,455

2007 2006
6,590 4,381
2,092 1,411
118 196
281 120
9,081 6,108
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In thousand Litas 2007 2006

28  Other expenses

Mediation and transportation expenses 466 436
Charity, support 629 117
Consulting, audit and legal expenses 983 593
Marketing and advertising expenses 818 562
Telecommunication and IT maintenance expenses 209 184
Business trip expenses 151 152
Taxes (other than income tax) 185 484
Office supplies and utilities 409 359
Office rent 374 218
Impairment provision for trade receivables 1,058 -
Bank charges 189 408
Other expenses 23 2,759
Total 5,494 6,272
In thousand Litas 2007 2006

29  Finance income

Interest income

- interest income from related parties (Note 30) 6,383 6,470
- interest income from third parties 383 3,760
- interest income on bank/deposit balances 14 214
Income on disposal of joint ventures 14,222 3,843
Profit on disposal of investments 6,160

Reversed impairment of loans and other receivables 337 1,320
Gain from currency exchange 676 0
Total 28,175 15,607
In thousand Litas 2007 2006

30 Finance costs

Interest expense

- bank borrowings 16,882 8,938
- barrowings from related parties 2,253
~ other borrowings 187 420
Losses from currency exchange 16,435 9,847
Other losses 2,503
Total 38,262 19,205
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In thousand Litas

Income tax
Current tax
Change in deferred tax (Note 21)

Totatl

2007 2006
3,001 4,665
7,979 10,419

10,980 15,084

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxes differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the basic tax rate as follows.

In thousand Litas
Result before tax

Income tax using the standard tax rate
Non-taxable income / non-deductible
expenses

Charity expenses deductible twice for tax
purposes

Under provided in previcus years

Impact of change of tax rates on
temporary differences

Total charge as to accounts

2007 2006

69,798 77,740

18.0% 12,564 19.0% 14,740
(2.0%) (1,378) 2.8% 2,183
(0.3%) (214) 0.0% (22)
0.6% 428 0.5% 413
(0.6%) (420) (2.9%) (2,230)
15.7% 10,980 18.8% 15,084

42



32

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Related party transactions

AB Hanner

Consolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2007

Joint ventures and associates of the Group, members of the Board and Senior Personnei and their close

family members are treated as related parties.

The Group is controlled by Mr. A. Avulis who owns 100.0 per cent of the Company’s share capital.

Companies controlled or significantly influenced by Mr. A. Avulis are treated as other related parties.

(i} the following transactions were carried out with related parties:

In thousand Litas

Interest income

Interest income from loans to associates and joint ventures
Interest income from loans to other related parties

Interest income from loans to Mr. A. Avulis

Total

(ii) vear end balances arising from transactions with related parties:

In thousand Litas

Long-term loans

Loans to associates and joint ventures

Less: provision for impairment of long-term loans to joint
ventures

Long-term loans to associates and joint ventures, net
Loans to other related parties
Loans to Mr. A. Avulis

Shori-term loans

Loans to associates and joint veniures

Less: provision for impairment of short-term loans to joint
ventures

Loans to joint ventures, net
Loans to other related parties
Loans to a member of Senior Management

Total

(iii) compensations to the Senior Management:
In thousand Litas

Salaries

2007 2006
7,739 6,442
267 23
6 s
8,012 6,470
2007 2006
10,600 43,845
(220) (1,325)
10,380 42,520
1,397 10,686
2,223 137
14,000 53,343
59,026 44,070
(896) (128)
58,130 43,942
6,434 .
84
64,564 44,026
2007 2006
531 623

Senior Management includes 3 (2006: 5) members of the Board and Senior Personnel.

43



AB Hauner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

33

Subsidiaries and joint ventures

Cou"try of Direct Owncrship

Subsidiary/ incorporati interest in %

joint venture on 2007 2006 Activity of the enterprise
Subsidiaries

] The main activity is development of real

UAB Hanner Property oy onia 100%  100%  estate projects in Lithuania,
UAB ,.Hanner Subsidiary managing real estate projects and
Development® Lithuania 100% 100%  construction works.
UAB Hanner AG Lithuania 90% 90%  The main activity is the wholesale of coal

UAB Bajory kalvos Lithuania

100% 100%

Subsidiary developing the residential project
Bajory Kalvos at Bajory road and
Mokslininky street in Viinius,

Subsidiary is developing a luxury residential
project Verkiy Slénis in Verkiai regional

UAB Verkiy slénis Lithuania 100% 100%  park, Vilnius,
UAB HD statyba Lithuania - 100%  Construction work..
The subsidiary is engaged in organisation
and coordination of the event ,Running to
V&] Hanner Up Lithuanta 100% 100%  the skyscraper ,Europa®,
The main activity of the subsidiary is
investment management. UAB Avesko
UAB Avesko Lithuania 100% i owns 95.6 of shares of AB Klaipédos
Kartonas.
UAB TVD statyba Lithuania $19% i Joint wventure is engaged in construction

SIA Hanner Real
Estate Latvia

SIA Dentava Latvia

SRL Hanner RD Romania

ZAQ Hanner Invest Ukraine
OO0 Hanner
Management Ukraine

ZAQO JBK Invest Ukraine

ZAQ Palmyra Invest Ukraine

ZAQ Ploshad

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

99,9% 99,9%

100% 100%

99% 99%

70% 70%

works,
Subsidiary coordinating activity of Hanner
and investiment in Latvia,

Company in Latvia is  developing
multifunctional real estate project Ropazu at
Ropazu street, Riga.

Enterprise is coordinating Hanner activities
and investments in Romania: at the moment
it is developing a residential Tineretului
project in Bucharest, Romania.

Subsidiary is coordinating Hanner activities
and investiments in Ukraine, besides it owns
interest in indirect subsidiaries Prioritet
000, Olimpeks Trans COO, Budmarin
000, Hanber GO0, Mir Atrakcionov Q00O
and associate Jugstroi Invest OO0 of the
Company.

Subsidiary is engaged in real estate project
management and construction in Ukraine,
Enterprise ~ which  main  activity s
implementation of QOO Prioritet developed
real estate projects.

Enterprise, which main activity is
implementation of OO0 Hanber developed
real estate project.

Enterprise, which main  activity s
implementation of OOQ Jugstroj Invest
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Tolbuchina Ukraine
ZAQ Stroitelnyje
Technologii Budusevo Ukraine
ZAO Zakrytyj
Nediversifikovanyj
Investicionyj Fond
Hanner-Vostok Ukraine
ZA'TT Hanner Bel )
Belorus

Invest
Joint ventures
UAB Avestis Capital Lithuania
UAB Gudeliy éilas Lithuania
UAB Santari$kiy namai Lithuania
UAB H5 Development Lithuania
S1A Puces Birzs Latvia
SIA Equilibrium Latvia
SRL S. C. Carol Park R .

. omania
Residence
SRL Europa Group Romania
Hanner
ZAO Nest Hanner Ukraine
Q00 Yudgin Ukraine

30%

75%

90%

51%

99%

40 %

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

80%

75%

0%

99%

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

40 %

developed real estate project.

Subsidiary is developing implementation of
the real estate project Fontanka in Odessa

Subsidiary which main activity is sales of
real estate developed in Ukraine

Joint  venture with AKOOO  Salner
Kompanija  Limited is engaged in
reconstruction of cinema studio buildings as
well as development of residential project in
Minsk, Belarus. The company was
established in 2007,

The main activity of the company is
investment, purchase of companies. The
company owns 40% of shares of UAB
General Financing and 70.27% of shares of
UAB of Avesko Keliat.

Join venture with Faulana is developing
implementation of residential project
Gudeliu Silas in Lazdynai district, Vilnius.
Joint venture with UABR Eika is engaged in
development  of  residential  project
Santari$kiy Namati in Vilnius.

Joint venture with UAB Penki Kontinentai,
UAB Trinapolis is engaged in development
of the block of buildings of commercial
(administrative) offices.

Joint venture with 1 un MC is developing a
residential block district project Purveiems
in Purvciems district, Riga.

Joint venture is developing residential
project in Purvciems district, Riga. Joint
venture shares were acquired in 2006.

Joint venture with Bellerive Holdings Lid. Is
developing the residential block district
project in Bucharest, Romania,

Joint venture with UAB Group Europa
Investment is developing the residential
block district project City Center Residence
in Bucharest, Romania.

Joint venture with ZAO Nest is developing a
multifunctional complex project at the
territory of the former tobacco factory in
Kiev, Ukraine, besides it owns interest in the
indirect subsidiary of the Company Ippon
Ltd. The company was sold in 20(7.

Joint venture with ZAO Nest is developing
the shopping center Olympic Plaza project in
Kiev, Ukraine. The company was sold in
2007,
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Joint venture with UAB Progresyvios
Investicijos is engaged in construction of
residential buildings. The company was
acquired in 2007.
Joint venture with UAB Girteka is engaged
in development of the Logistics Center
project in St. Petersburg, Russia. The
Russia 50% - company was established in 2007.
Joint venture with UAB Girtcka is engaged
in management of the Logistics Center
QOO0 5PB project and construction. The company was
Development Logistik Russia 50% - established in 2007,

000 Predprijatie
Vaizbunas Ukraine 50% -

000 Sugary Logistik

34 Legal claims
The Company is not involved in any litigation where it acts as a defendant.
35  Fair value of financial instruments

The Company’s principal financial instruments not carried at fair value are trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, borrowings.

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced
or liquidation sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models
and option pricing models as appropriate.

In the opinion of the Company’s management, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables and borrowings approximate their fair values.

36  Subsequent events

1. In 2008, while implementing decisions, dated 11 December 2007, of the sole shareholder of AB
Hanner, the actions re end of the activity of the subsidiaries of AB Hanner ZAO Ploshad
Tolbuchina and ZAO Palmira Invest established in the Republic of Ukraine were started.

2. On 12 February 2008, new Articles of Association of AB Hanner were registered with the
Register of Legal Entities. According to the new Articles of Association, the number of the Board
members of the Company was decreased from 5 (five) to 3 (three). Mr. Arvydas Avulis, Mr.
Vladas Kojala and Mr. Robertas Kisiclius were elected as new members of the Board for a period
of four years.

3. On 7 May 2008, AB Hanner signed an agreement of purchase-sales of parts with UAB
Progresyvios Investicijos. As to the agreement mentioned, UAB Progresyvios Investicijos, having
carried out the terms of the agreement mentioned above, shall acquire 50% of the parts (held by
AB Hanner) of the limited liability company Pidpriemstvo Vaizbunas established in the Republic
of Ukraine.

4. On 1 July 2008, Robertas Kisielius was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of AB Hanner.
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Annual report for 2007
AB Hanner was registered on 27 July 1995,
The authorised capital of the Company, registered with the Company Register, amounts 1o

16,000,000 Litas as at 31 December 2007 and consists of 16,000 ordinary registered shares
with a nominal value of 1 thousand Litas each. All the shares are fully paid in.

There are no debt or derivative securities issued and the increase of the authorised capital on
the securities’ basis is not foreseen.

As at 31 December 2007, the number of AB Hanner shareholders amounted to 1. The sole
shareholder of the Company was:

Shareholder Registered address Number of Sha'r e of authorised
shares capital and votes %o
Arvydas Avulis Nugalétojy Str. 6, Vilnius 16,000 100

Members of the management bodies and their participation in the Company’s
authorised capital

Position Name, surname Participation in the authorised capital
Chairman of the Board Arvydas Avulis Holds 100% of the Company's shares
Member of the Board and Vladas Kojala Does not participate

General Director of the
Company
Member of the Board Robertas Kisielius Does not participate

AB Hanner performs its activities in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Lithuania
on Companies and other legal acts effective in the Republic of Lithuania.

The main activities of the Group are the management of real estate development projects and
lease of real estate; trade in coal; production of cardboard and investments of private capital.
Investments in development of real estate, construction as well as investments of private
capital are performed both from own and borrowed funds.

At the end of 2007, the companies of the Group own property, plant and equipment, and
investment property of 415,112 thousand Litas, which include:

Investment property 299,560 thousand Litas;
Buildings and plant 69,599 thousand Litas;
Vehicles 1,780 thousand Litas;
Other assets 44,115 thousand Litas.

The Group‘s liability to the credit institutions amounted to 398,088 thousand Litas.

The assets of the Group are insured by Lithuanian and foreign insurance companies.

47



AB Hanner
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007

At the end of 2007, AB Hanner Group employed 598 employees. The remuneration fund
amounts to 9,081 thousand Litas,

All assets of the Group of the companies amount to 980,488 thousand Litas as at 31
December 2007 and increased by 244,962 thousand Litas if to compare with the
corresponding period of previous year. The most significant increase was in the value of
non-current tangible assets: from 3,268 thousand Litas at the end of 2006 to 115,552
thousand Litas at the end of 2007, This increase was influenced by the acquisition of
cardboard production company AB Klaipédos Kartonas at the end of 2007,

In 2007, revenue of the Group companies, if to compare with the year 2006, increased from
152,606 thousand Litas to 203,703 thousand Litas, i.e. by 51,907 thousand Litas (33%).
Sales of the coal increased respectively from 66,772 thousand Litas to 71,172 thousand
Litas. Revenue from sales of real estate increased respectively from 52,404 thousand Litas
to 96,833 thousand Litas.

As at 19 February 2007, the public emission of the Company‘s bonds amounting to
10 million EUR and with a term of 2 years was successfully issued. The interest rate was set
on the last day of the issue of bonds’ emission, i.e. on 19 February 2007 and is by 2 per cent
higher than the interest rates of the standard swap agreement with a term of 2 years (4.2 per
cent) (fnterest Rate Swap — IRS).

In 2007, the companies of AB Hanner Group did not participate and currenily are not

participating in any lawsuits or arbitral procedures that could influence financial position of
the Company.
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31 December 2007

Country of . .
Subsidiary/ incorpos:‘a— interest in %
joint venture tion 2007 2006 Activity of the enterprise

Subsidiaries
The main activity is development of real

UAB Hanner Property  Lithuania 100% 100%  estate projects.

UAB Hanner Subsidiary is managing real estate projects

Development Lithuania 100% 160%  and construction works.

UAB Hanner AG Lithuania 90% 90%  The main activity is wholesale in coal.
Subsidiary is developing the residential
proiect Bajory Kalvos at Bajory street and

UAB Bajory Kalvos Lithuania 100% 100%  Mokslininky street in Vilnius.

Subsidiary is developing a luxury residential
project Verkiy Slénis in Verkiai regional

UAB Verkiy Slénis Lithuania 100% 100%  park, Vilnius.

UAB HD Statyba Lithuania - 100%  Construction works.

The subsidiary is engaged in organisation
and coordination of the show ,,Running up

V] Hanner Up Lithuania 100% 100%  the skyscraper ,,Europa®.

The main activity of the subsidiary is
managing of investments. UAB Avesko

UAB Avesko Lithuania 100% - owns 95.6 shares of AB Klaipédos Kartonas.

UAB TVD Statyba Lithuania 51% - Joint venfure engaged in construction works.

SIA Hanner Real Subsidiary, coordinating activity of Hanner

Estate Latvia 100% 100%  and investment in Latvia,

Company in Latvia is developing
multifunctional real estate project ,,Ropazu®

SIA Dentava Latvia 100% 100%  at Ropazu street, Riga.

SIA Hanner Olympia The company engaged in multifunctional

Centrs Latvia 100% 100%  project development in Latvia.

Coordinaies investments into real estate in
Romania and implementation of project

SRL Hanner RD Romania 100% 100%  Tinerctului in Bucharest, Romania.
Coordinates investments and activities of
Hanner in Ukraine, besides it owns interest
in indirect subsidiaries Prioritet O0Q,
Olimpeks Trans 000, Budmarin 000,
Hanber GOO, Mir Atrakcionov QOO and
associate Jugstroi Invest QOO of the

ZAO Hanner Invest Ukraine 99.9% 99.9%  Company.
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Management

ZA0 JIBK Invest

ZAQ Palmyra Invest

ZAQ Ploshad
Tolbuchina

ZAQ Stroitelnyje
Technologii Budusevo
ZAO Zakrytyj
Nediversifikovanyj

Investicionyj Fond
Hanner-Vostok

ZATT Hanner Bel
Invest

Joint ventures

UAB Avestis Capital
UAB Gudeliy Silas

UAB Santariskiy
Namai

UAB HS5 Development

SIA Puces Birzs

SIA Equilibrium

SRL S, C, Carol Park
Residence

Ukraine

Ukraine

Ukraine

Ukraine

Ukraine

Ukraine

Belarus

Lithuania

Lithuania

Lithuania

Lithuania

Latvia

Latvia

Romania

100%

99%

70%

80%

75%

90%

S5t%

99%

40%

50%

50%

50%

50%

50%

AB Hanner
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100%

99%

T0%

80%

75%

90%

99%

50%

50%

50%

0%

0%

31 December 2007

Subsidiary is engaged in real estate project
management and construction in Ukraine.
Enterprise which main activity is
implementation of Q0O Prioritet developed
real estate project.

Enterprise, which main activity is
implementation of OO0 Hanber developed
real estate project,

Enterprise, which main activity is
implementation of O0Q Jugstroj Invest
developed real estate project.

Subsidiary is developing implementation of
the real estate project Fontanka in Odessa.

Subsidiary which main activity is sales of
real estate developed in Ukraine,

Joint venture with AKOOO Salner
Kompanija Limited is engaged in
reconstruction of cinema studio buildings as
well as development of residential project in
Minsk, Belarus. The company was
established in 2007,

The main activity of the company is
investments and purchase of companies.
Company owns 40% of shares of UAB
General Financing and 70.27% of shares of
UAB Avesko Keliai.

Join venture with Faulana is developing
implementation of residential project
Gudeliy Silas in Lazdynai district, Vilnius.
Joint venture with UAB Eika is engaged in
development of residential project
Santari¥kiy Namai in Vilnjus.

Joint venture with UAB Penki Kontinentai,
UAB Trinapolis is engaged in development
of the block of buildings of commercial
(administrative) offices.

Joint venture with I un MC is developing a
residential block district project Purvciems
in Purvciems district, Riga.

Joint venture is developing a residential
project in Purveiems district, Riga. Joint
venture shares were acquired in 2006.
Joint venture with Bellerive Holdings Lid. Is
developing residential block district project
in Bucharest, Romania.
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Vaizbunas Ukraine 50%

000 Sufary Logistik Russia 50%

000 5PB

Development Logistik Russia 50%

AB Hanner

Consolidated financial statements for the year ended

50%

50%

40%

31 December 2007

Joint venture with UAB Group Europa
Investment is developing the residential
block district project City Center Residence
in Bucharest, Romania.

Joint venture with ZAO Nest is developing a
multifunctional complex project at the
territory of the former tobacco factory in
Kiev, Ukraine, besides it owns interest in
indirect subsidiary of the Company Ippon
Ltd. The company was sold in 2007,

Joint venture with ZAQ Nest is developing
the shopping center Olympic Plaza project in
Kiev, Ukraine. The company was sold in
2007.

Joint venture with UAR Progresyvios
Investicijos is engaged in construction of
residential buildings. The company was
acquired in 2007.

Joint venture with UAB Girteka is engaged
in development of the Logistics Cenfer
project in St. Petersburg, Russia. The
company was established in 2007.

Joint venture with UAB Girteka is engaged
in management of the Logistics Center
project and construction. 'The company was
established in 2007.
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Major events during 2007

Major events in the Company during the current financial year untit Annual General
Meeting:

On 31 January 2007, the Company signed an agreement with AB Bankas Hansabankas
regarding additional credit amount of 8,688,600 EUR (29,999,998 Litas),

On 19 February 2007, the public issue of the Company‘s bonds amounting to 10 million
EUR and with a term of 2 years was successfully issued. The interest rate was set on the last
day of the issue of bonds’ emission, i.e. on 19 February 2007 and is by 2 per cent higher than
the interest rates of the standard swap agreement with a term of 2 years (4.2 per cent)
(Interest Rate Swap — IRS).

On 14 February 2007, the Company sold 100 ordinary intangible shares (100% of the
authorised capital) to UAB HD Statyba.

On 22 March 2007, the Company sold 17,535,000 intangible shares (50% of the authorised
capital) to ZAO Nest Hanner.

On 27 February 2007, the Company, together with its partner UAB Girteka, established a
company Q0O Shusary Logistik, which is located in the Russian Federation. The Company
holds 50% of the authorised capital.

On 2 May 2007, the Company, together with its partner Kestutis Mickus, established a
company OO0 Hanner SPB Development, which is located in the Russian Federation, The
Company holds 99% of the authorised capital.

On 2 May 2007, AB Hanner acquired shares of UAB Santariskiy Namai owned by UAB
Hanner Development. On 22 May 2007, AB Hanner and UAB Eika decided to increase the
authorised capital of UAB Santariskiy Namai by 4,990,000.00 Litas up to 5,000,000.00
Litas. AB Hanner and YUAB Eika hold 50 per cent (each) of the shares of the mentioned
company.

On 11 May 2007, agreement No. 11/05 re purchase-sales of parts in the authorised capital
was signed. According to the agreement mentioned, AB Hanner sold 39.99999% of parts in
the authorised capital of the limited liability company established in the Republic of Ukraine
Judzin (in Russian - OO0 {0mxun), company code 31303824, address — Generolo Naumovo
Str. 23B, Kiev, Ukraine (hereinafter - QOO Judzin).

On 1 June 2007, an agreement re purchase-sales of parts was signed. According to the
agreement signed, AB Hanner acquired 50% of parts of the limited liability company
Pidpriemstvo Vaizbunas established in the Republic of Ukraine. The authorised capital of
the limited liability company Pidpriemstvo Vaizbunas amounts to 27,000 UAH.

On 9 November 2007, UAB HS5 Development was established and registered in which
AB Hanner holds 50 per cent parts in the authoried capital of the company established.

On 5 May 2007, the increase of 32,250,000 Litas of the secondary company of the Company

UAB Avestis Capital, in which the Company holds 99% of the authorised capital, was
registered at PE Registry Ceniras.
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On 29 October 2007, AB Hanner signed a purchase-sales of shares agreement with a joint
venture of Lithuania and USA UAB Sanitex and UAB Avestis, according to which AB Hanner,
having carried out the terms of the agreement, shall acquire 100 per cent of the shares of UAB
Avesko, company code 300145810, registered address - Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius. UAB
Avesko holds 95.6 per cent of the shares of AB Klaipédos Kartonas, company code 1410 11268,
registered address - Nemuno Str. 2, Klaipéda.

On 30 November 2007, transactions of purchase-sales of shares with the joint venture of
Lithuania and USA UAB Sanitex and UAN Avestis were concluded, following which AB
Hanner acquired 100% of the shares of UAB Avesko, company code 300145810, registration
address — Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius. UAB Avesko holds 95.6% of the shares of AB
Klaipédos Kartonas.

On 4 September 2007, an agreement of purchase-sales of shares was signed. As to the
mentioned agreement, AB Hanner sold 533 units of the shares of UAB Gudeliy Silas
established in Lithuania, comprising 9.892 per cent from the total shares of the company UAB
Gudeliy Silas. Currently AB Hanner holds 2,161 shares of UAB Gudeliy Silas, comprising
40.1076 per cent from the total shares. The authorised capital of UAB Gudeliy Silas amounts to
5,388,000.00 Litas and is divided into 5,388 shares. The nominal value per share is 1,000 Litas.

On 17 December 2006, the sole shareholder of AB Hanner accepts a decision to authorise
Lionginas Sepetys, the former general director of AB Hanner, to vote at the general
shareholders® meeting of the limited liability company Hanner Vostok re issue of
400,000,000 shares. On 2 August 2007, AB Hanner acquired 249,445,126 shares for
62,361,281.50 UAH (28,443,994 Litas). On 22 November 2007, the authorised capital of the
limited liability company Hanner Vostok is increased by 100,000,000, i.e. from 1,000,000 UAH
to 101,000,000 UAH. The capital is divided into 404,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal
value of 25 kopecks each. AB Hanner owns 99.8% of the shares of Hanner Vostok.

On 14 December 2007 AB Hanner, the sole shareholder of the limited liability company Hanner
Real Estate, accepted a decision to increase the authorised capital of the limited liability
company Hanner Real Estate from 2,000 LVL to 95,000 LVL and to pay for the newly issued
shares on 1 February 2008. The authorised capital of the limited liability company Hanner Real
Estate is divided into 4,750 shares with a nominal value of 20 LVL each.

Plans and forecasts for the activities

In 2008, the companies of AB Hanner Group plan to continue already started and new projects
of the real estate development in Lithuania and abroad. In Lithuania it is planned to finish the
second stage of the developed project performed by the subsidiary UAB Bajory Kalvos and to
start developing the third and the fourth stages, besides, the project of the residential
construction being developed by the subsidiary UAB Verkiy Slénis will be finished. UAB
Gudeliy Silas, the joint venture of AB Hanner, is planning to finish the residential construction
project, and UAB Santariskiy Namai expects to finish the first stage of the project. It is
foreseen to finish projects abroad: one project in Ukraine and two projects in Romania. In 2008,
the Company will continue the development of the real estate project in the Russian Federation
and a real estate project will be started to be developed in the Republic of Belarus.

Chief Executive Officer Robertas Kisielius
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CONFIRMATION FROM RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

Pursuant to Article 22 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and to Rules on
Preparation and Submission Regular and Additional Information of the Lithuanian
Securities Commission, we, the General Manager of Hanner public limited Hability
company Robertas Kisielius and Finance director Tomas Pauliukonis hereby confirm that
according to our best knowledge the present annual report Hanner AB for 2007 contains a

true survey of business development and activities,

General Manager of Hanner AB Robertas J«is:

05 September 2008 Al

Tomas Partl
s

...........................

Finance Director of Hanner AB
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1. Accounting Period in Respect of Which the Report is Drawn,

January-December 2007.

2, Principal Data on the Issuer.

Name:
Authorised capital:

Address of registered office:

Telephone:

Fax

fi-mail

Internet website

Legal-organisation form:

The company was registered on

Legal form was changed on
Administrator of register

Legal entity code
Period of activity

3. Nature of Core Business.

Principal activities of the Company include development of real property projects, rent of

Hanner AB (hereinafter referred to as the Company)
LTL 16,000,000

Konstitucijos Ave. 7, LT-09308, Viinius, Lithuania
(8~5) 248 7272

(8~5) 248 7273

info@hanner.lt

www.hanner.lt

Public limited liability company

27 July 1995

8 Sepltember 2005

State Enterprise Centre of Registers

1115 35724

Unlimited

real property, private equity investments cardboard production and wholesale of coal,

4. Agreements with Brokers of Securities Public Turnover.

On 24 Qctober 2003, Issuer Servicing Agreement was signed with public limited Hability
company SEB Vilniaus Bankas (company code 112021238, Gedimino Ave. 12, LT-01103 Vilnius),

represented by Department of Financial Markets.

5. Authorised Capital of the Issuer.

Authorised capital of Hanner AB as registered in the Register of Companies of the Republic
of Lithuania amounts to LTL 16,000,000,

Structure of Hanner AB share capital according to types of shares:

Type of Shares Number of ominal Value [5ross Nominal Value [Share in the Authorised
Shares (LTL) (LTL) Capital (%)
Ordinary registered shares 16,000 1000 16,000,000 100
Total: 16,000 - 16,000,000 100

All the shares of Hanner AB are paid-up and no restrictions on securities transfer are applied

in respect of them.

HANNER
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6. Information on Subsidiary Companies of the Issuer

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of Hanner AB, also share of the Company in their authorised
capital as of 31 December 2007 are indicated in Annexno. 2.

7. Information on Own Shares Held by the Issuer.

The Company has not acquired its own shares, the shares of the Company were not
purchased by its daughter enterprise as well. During the accounting period, the Company and its
daughter enterprise did not buy or sell its own shares.

8. Data on Trade in Securities of the Issuer in Regulated Markets.

The following securities of Hanner AB are included into Debt Securities Trade List of Vilnius

Stock Exchange:
i . G
Type of Securities | o onty | Numberof | Nominal Nominal | ISIN Code of
Date iti E I
Securities (pes) | Value (EUR) Value (EUR) the Issue
Ordinary registered
bonds 20-02-2009 100,000 100 10,000,000 1.T1000402065

9. Shareholders.

On 31 December 2008, the principal shareholder of the Company, holding 100% of its shares,
was Arvydas Avulis. The Company is owned by the sole shareholder, which means that the
ownership and all the decisions are concentrated in hands of one person.

Number of shares held (pcs)

Share of votes held (in percents)

Name and surpame (company Of th;mt; wned Votes provided by Votes provided by
name) of shareholder, personal y e shares held by the shares held by the
Total shareholder Total
(company} number, address ) shareholder under shareholder together
under title of , . ; .
. title of ownership with co-acting persons
ownership
Arvydas Avulis 16,000 16,000 100 100 100

Rights of all the shareholders are identical, and therefore the number of shares entitling to
vote in the general meeting of shareholders of Hanner AB is 16,000,000.

HANNER
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10. Employees.

According to data of 30 June 2008, the Hanner AB employed 41 employee in total. On 30

June 2007, total number of employees amounted to 41.

Group of Employees Average List Number Average Salary, LTL
31-12-2007 31-12-2006 31-12-2007 31-12-2006

Managing staff 13 11 9 379 4 373

Employees 26 31 4 055 2106

Total: 39 42 5 830 2700

31-12-2007 31-12-2006
Employees with higher education 29 35
Employees with further education 3

Employees with secondary education 7 7
I5 viso 39 42

11. Managemet Bodies of the Issuer.

Structure of management bodies of Hanner AB consists of general manager (one-person
management body) and the board. Supervisory board is not created in the Company.

Competence of the board of the Company and procedure for its election and revocation are
the same as the procedures laid down in the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.

BOARD (31 December 2007}

The Board of five members was elected on 16 August 2007 for four year term of office under
decision of the sole shareholder of Hanner AB Arvydas Avulis:

Arvydas Avulis — Chairman of the Board (Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius). Education — higher,
engineer-constructor. For the last ten years he acted as adviser to the General Manager of Hanner
AB. Holds 100% of the shares of the Company. Was not tried for crimes against property, economic
procedures or finances. A. Avulis additionally owns 1000 (one thousand) of shares of Avestis UAB
(20 percents of authorised capital) and 533 (five hundred thirty three) of shared of Gudeliy Silas
UAB ( 9,89 percents of authorised capital). A. Avulis is a member of supervisory board of Avestis
UAB (Lithuania), chairman of board of Klaipédos Kartonas AB (Lithuania), chairman of board of
Avestis Capital UAB (Lithuania), member of board of Santarigkiy Namai UAB (Lithuania), member
of board of Paces Birzs SIA (Latvia), member of board of Equilibrium SIA (Latvia), and member of
board of S. C. Carol Park Residence SRL (Romania).
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Lionginas Sepetys — member of the Board (Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius). Does not hold shares
of the Company. Was not tried for crimes against property, economic procedures or finances.

Vladas Kojala — member of the Board, deputy general manager (Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius).
Education — higher, engineer-mechanic. From 02-01-1996 to 02-01-2005 acted as Director of Hanner
AB, from 25-02-2005 to 31-01-2007 as deputy general manager, from 01-02-2007 to 31-06-2008 as
General Manager and from 01-07-2008 acting as deputy general manager. Does not hold the shares
of the Company. Was not tried for crimes against property, economic procedures or finances. V.
Kojala holds 10,000 (ten thousand) shares of Hanner AG UAB (10 percents of authorised capital). V.
Kojala is Director of Hanner AG UAB, Hanner Development UAB and Hanner Property UAB. He
does not participate in activities of capital of other companies,

Robertas Kisielius — from 01-07-2008 acting as General Manager, member of the Board, member
of board of Klaipedos Kartonas AB. Does not hold shares of the Company. Was not tried for crimes
against property, economic procedures or finances, He does not participate in activities of capital of
other companies.

One member of the Board was temporary not elected.

On 8 February 2008 The Board of three members was elected for four year term of office under
decision of the sole shareholder of Hanner AB Arvydas Avulis

ADMINISTRATION (31 December 2007)

Vladas Kojala — member of the Board, General manager (Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius).
Education — higher, engineer-mechanic. From 02-01-1996 to 02-01-2005 acted as Director of Hanner
AB, from 25-02-2005 to 31-01-2007 as deputy general manager, from 01-02-2007 to 31-06-2008 as
General Manager and from 01-07-2008 acting as deputy general manager. Does not hold the shares
of the Company. Was not tried for crimes against property, economic procedures or finances. V.
Kojala holds 10,000 (ten thousand) shares of FHanner AG UAB (10 percents of authorised capital). V.
Kojala is Director of Hanner AG UAB, Hanner Development UAB and Hanner Property UAB. He
does not participate in activities of capital of other companies

Veslava Juchevié- Chief Financier (Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius). Education - higher,
economics of construction and business. In 1997-2002 acted as Chief Financier of Falck Security
UAB, and from 2002 acts as Chief Financier of Hanner AB. V. Juchevid is a chief financier of Hanner
AG UAB, Hanner Property UAB, TVD Statyba UAB, H5 Development UAB. Does not hold the
shares of the Company. Was not tried for crimes against property, economic procedures or finances.
V. Juchevif owns 405 (four hundred and five) shares of Zalioji Dilgyné UAB (45 percents of
authorised capital).

Tomas Pauliukonis — Finance director (Konstitucijos Ave. 7, Vilnius). Does not hold the shares
of the Company. Was not tried for crimes against property, economic procedures or finances. T.
Pauliukonis acts as General Manager of Avestis Capital UAB, as General Manager of Avesko UAB,
as member of board of Avestis Capital UAB, as member of board of Santari$kiy Namai UAB, as
member of board of Klaipedos Kartonas AB, as member of supervisory board of Hanner Invest
ZAQ (Ukraine), and as member of supervisory board of Mena Pak AO (Ukraine).
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Information on gross amounts and average values of salaries, bonuses and other payments
made by the Company during the accounting period from its profit per person:

- 'Indices _ N Salary of 2007 Bonuses of Qther Total
{ (thousands LTL) | - - 2006 payments | (thousands
| : c- . (thousands | (thousands LTL)
LTL) LTL)

For one member of the Board on averape* 71 103 174

For all the members of the Board in total* 213 103 316

For one member of administration on 105,4 105,4

average**

For all the members of administration in 527 527

total**

NOTES:

* -The Board of the Company consisted of four persons.
* - Members of administration of the Company comprised General Manager of the Company, Director,

Financial manager, and Adviser of the Director.

12. Information on Activity Results of the Issuer,

At the end of 2007, the companies of the Group own property, plant and equipment, and
investment property of 415,112 thousand Litas, which include:

Investment property 299,560 thousand Litas;
Buildings and plant 69,599 thousand Litas;
Vehicles 1,780 thousand Litas;
Other assets 44,115 thousand Litas.

The Group's liability to the credit institutions amounted to 398,088 thousand Litas.

The assets of the Group are insured by Lithuanian and foreign insurance companies.

At the end of 2007, AB Hanner Group employed 598 employees. The remuneration fund amounts to
9,081 thousand Litas.

All assets of the Group of the companies amount to 980,488 thousand Litas as at 31 December 2007
and increased by 244,962 thousand Litas if to compare with the corresponding period of previous
year. The most significant increase was in the value of non-current tangible assets: from 3,268
thousand Litas at the end of 2006 to 115,552 thousand Litas at the end of 2007. This increase was
influenced by the acquisition of cardboard production company AB Klaipédos Kartonas at the end
of 2007.

In 2007, revenue of the Group companies, if to compare with the year 2006, increased from 152,606
thousand Litas to 203,703 thousand Litas, i.e. by 51,907 thousand Litas (33%). Sales of the coal
increased respectively from 66,772 thousand Litas to 71,172 thousand Litas. Revenue from sales of
real estate increased respectively from 52,404 thousand Litas to 96,833 thousand Litas.

As at 19 February 2007, the public emission of the Company’s bonds amounting to

10 million EUR and with a term of 2 years was successfully issued. The interest rate was set on the
last day of the issue of bonds’ emission, i.e. on 19 February 2007 and is by 2 per cent higher than the
interest rates of the standard swap agreement with a term of 2 years (4.2 per cent) (Interest Rate Swap
- IRS).
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In 2007, the companies of AB Hanner Group did not participate and currently are not participating
in any lawsuits or arbitral procedures that could influence financial position of the Company.

Risk Factors Related to Activities of the Issuer.

Market Risk. The Company is operating not only in Lithuania, but also carries its activity
abroad — in Latvia, Ukraine, Romania, Russia and Belarus. This may pose additional risk factors
related to taxing, statutory and other legislative requirements of these countries, also to currency
risk. Moreover, it can encounter increased political or economic instability. Any of the said factors
may have negative impact on activities and financial results of the Company.

Real Property Prices. Real property prices depend on macroeconomic situation of each country.
They are influenced by various factors, including interest rate, inflation level, economic growth,
currency exchange rate, availability of finances, taxation of real property, demographic factors, level
of construction and restrictions of ownership applied to investors of various categories. Changes of
supply and demand in local markets, emerging due to new construction projects or other factors,
can also significantly influence value of property irrespective of general regional development of
real property markets.

Fierce Competition. Both in Lithuania and in other couniries where the Company operates
competition on real property markets is huge and should only increase in future. So far the demand
of sales and office areas is not met, but the growing number of competitors will in tome increase the
supply, which may reduce lease prices and, consequently, income of the Company and its market

shares.
More information on activity and financial results of the Company for year 2007 is submitted in

annual consolidated financial statement of Hanner AB for 2007
13. References and Additional Explanations on Interim Financial Statement.

All the financial data provided in the present report are calculated in accordance with
International Standards of Financial Statements.

14. Plans and Forecasts of Activities of the Issuer.

In 2008, the companies of AB Hanner Group plan to continue already started and new projects
of the real estate development in Lithuania and abroad. In Lithuania it is planned to finish the
second stage of the developed project performed by the subsidiary UAB Bajory Kalvos and to start
developing the third and the fourth stages, besides, the project of the residential construction being
developed by the subsidiary UAB Verkiy Slénis will be finished. UAB Gudeliy Silas, the joint
venture of AB Hanner, is planning to finish the residential construction project, and UAB
Santariskiy Namai expects to finish the first stage of the project. It is foreseen to finish projects
abroad: one project in Ukraine and two projects in Romania. In 2008, the Company will continue
the development of the real estate project in the Russian Federation and a real estate project will be
started to be developed in the Republic of Belarus.
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15. Data on Publicly Announces Information,

In year 2007 the Company announced the following notifications on material events:

21.12.2007 - CORRECTION: Hanner AB company's and consolidated unaudited financial
statements for 9 months of 2007.

30.11.2007 - Hanner AB announces company's and consolidated unaudited financial statements for
9 months of 2007

30.11.2007 - AB Hanner acquired 100 perc. UAB “Avesko” shares

30.10.2007 - Regarding AB Hanner preliminary unaudited consolidated results for the 9 months of
2007

29.10.2007 - AB Hanner signed UAB “Avesko” shares purchase-sale agreements

25.10.2007 - AB Hanner apply to Competition council of the Republic of Lithuania concerning the
issue of permission to acquire 100 perc. of UAB “Avesko” shares

17.09.2007 - Regarding the establishment of AB Hanner daughter company UAB “Hb5

Development”
31.08.2007 - Interim consolidated report of Hanner AB for six months of 2007 and Hanner AB

financial statements for the I-st half year, 2007
27.07.2007 - Regarding the establishment of AB "Hanner" daughter company I00O "Hanner Bel

Invest"
12.07.2007 - CORRECTION: Regarding AB Hanner consolidated financial statements and AB

Hanner financial statements for the year ended 31 December, 2006

03.07.2007 - Regarding AB Hanner financial statements for the quarter ended 31 March, 2007
14.06.2007 - CORRECTION: Regarding AB Hanner consolidated financial statements and AB
Hanner financial statements for the year ended 31 December, 2006

13.06.2007 - Regarding AB Hanner consolidated financial statements and AB Hanner financial
statements for the year ended 31 December, 2006

12.06.2007 - Regarding the sale of the hold part in the statutory

04.06.2007 - Concerning acquisition of the parts of the limited liability company established in the

Republic of Ukraine

27.03.2007 - Regarding establishment of a new limited liability legal person in the Russia Federation
All the information on material events publicly announced during year 2007 can be accessed

in website of Flanner AB www.hanner.lt.

16. Procedure for Amending Articles of Association of the Issuer.

The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania stipulates that amendment of articles of
association is exclusive right of general meeting of shareholders. When making decision on
amendment of articles of association, qualified 2/3 majority of votes participating in the general
meeting of shareholders is necessary.

Since all the shares of the Company belong to sole shareholder, presently the articles of
association can be amended by decision of the sole shareholder.

HANNER
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17, Information on Compliance with the Corporate Governaince Code.

Information on compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is presented in the Annex

No.1.

HANNER




Annex |

Disclosure form concerning the compliance with the Governance Code for the companies listed on the regulated market

The public company Hanner, following Article 21 paragraph 3 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and item 20.5 of the
Trading Rutes of the Vilnius Stock Exchange, discloses its compliance with the Governance Code, approved by the VSE for the companies
listed an the regulated market, and its specific provisions. In the event of non-compliance with the Code or with certain provisions thereof,
it must be specified which provisions are not complied with and the reasons of non-compliance.

PRINCIPLES! RECOMMENDATIONS

YES/NO
/NOT
APPLICA
BLE

COMMENTARY

Principle I: Basic Provisions

shareholder value,

The overriding ohjective of o company should be to operate in common interests of all the shareholders by optimizing over time

1.1, A company should adopt and make public the company’s development strategy
and objectives by clearly declaring how the compuny intends to meet the interesis of
its shareholders and aptimize shareholder value.

No

Company’s shares are not listed
publicly, there is sole shareholder.
Development strategy and objectives
are disclosed publicly partly.

1.2, All management bodies of a company should act in [urtherance of the declared
strategic objectives in view of the need 1o optimize shareholder value.

Yes

Stralegic objectives are established
by the Board. CEQ is responsible for
CEQO s

implemeniation  and

accountable to the Board

1.3. A company’s supervisory and management bodies should act in close co-
operation in order to attain maximum benefit for the company and its sharehalders,

Due to shareholders structure there is
no supervisory board.

L4, A company’s supervisory and management bodies should ensure that the rights
and interests of persons other than the company’s shareholders {e.g. employees,
ereditors, suppliers, clients, local community), participating in or connected with the
company’s operation, are duly respected.

The Board controls implementation
of strategic objectives,

Principle IT: The corporate governance framework

shareholders’ interests.

The corporate povernance framework should ensure the strategic puidance of the company, the effective oversight of the company’s
management bodies, an nppropriate balance and distribution of functions between the company’s bodies, protection of the

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in the Law on Companies of the Republic
of Lithuania — a general sharcholders® meeling and the chief executive officer, it is
recommended that a company should set up both a collegial supervisory body and a
collegial management body. The setting up of collegial badies for supervision and
management facilitates clear separntion of management and supervisory functions in
the company, accountability and contral on the part of the chief executive officer,
which, in its turn, facilitate 2 more efficient and transparent management pracess.

No

There is no supervisory council,
however there is elected the Board

2.2, A collegiai management body is respensible for the strategic management of the
company and performs other key functions of corporate governance. A collegial
supervisory body is responsible for the effective supervision of the company’s
management bodies,

Yes

The Board performs such functions.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one collegial body, it is recommended
that it should be a supervisory body, i.c. the supervisary board. In such a case, the
supervisory board is responsible for the effective monitoring of the functions

performed by the compnny’s chiel executive officer.

There is only the Board in the
company




2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be elected by the general shareholders’ meeting
should be set up and should act in the manner defined in Principles 111 and V. Where
a company should decide not to set up a collegial supervisory body but rather a
colleginl manngement body, i.e. the board, Principles 11 and 1V should apply to the
board as long as that does not contradict the essence and purpose of this body.!

Yes

2.5, Company’s management and supervisory bodies should comprise such number of
board (executive directors) and supervisory {non-executive directors) board members
that no individual or small group of individuals can dominate decision-making on the
part of these bodies.”

No

The Board consists of 3 (three)}
members.

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the supervisory board should be
appeinted for specified terms subject 1o individual re-election, at maximum intervals
provided for in the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensuring necessary
development of professicnal experience and sufficiently frequent reconfirmation of
their status. A possibility to remove them should also be stipulated however this
procedure should not be easier than the removal procedure for an executive director

or a member of the management board,

There is no supervisory board

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by the peneral shareholders’ meeting may
be a person whose current or past office constitutes no obstacle to conduct
independent and impartial supervision. Where a company should decide not to set up
n supervisory board but rather the board, it is recommended that the chairman of the
board and chiefl executive officer of the company should be a different person. Former
company’s chief execulive officer should not be immediately nominated as the
chairman of the collegial body elected by the general shareholders® meeting. When a
company chooses to departure from these recommendations, it should fumnish
information on the measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of the supervision,

Yes

Chairman of the Board has never
been the CEO.

Principle III: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders® mecting
The order of the formation a collegial body to be elected by n general shareholders’ meeting should ensure representation of
minority sharcholders, accountability of this body to the shareholders and objective monitoring of the company's operation and its

management bodies.”

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a peneral
shareholders’ meeting (hereinafter in this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body')
should ensure objective and fair monitoring of the company’s management bodies as
well as representation of minority shareholders.

Yes

The Board supervises nctivities of
CEO

! Provisions of Principles III and IV are more applicable to those instances when the general shareholders’ meeting elects the
supervisory board, i.e. n body that is essentinlly formed to ensure oversight of the company’s board and the chief executive officer
and to represent the company’s shareholders. Flowever, in case the company does not form the supervisory board but rather the
board, most of the recommendntions set out in Principles III and IV become important and applicable to the board as well,
Furthermore, it should be noted that certain recommendations, which are in thair essence and nature applicable exclusively to the
supervisory board, should not be applied to the board, as the competence and functions of these bodies according to the Law on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania {Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-3574} are different. For instance, item 3.1 of the Code
concerning aversight of the management badies applies to the extent it concerns the oversight of the chief executive officer of the
company, but not of the board itself; item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommendations to the management bodies applies to the
extent it relates to the provision of recommendations to the company’s chief executive officer; ilem 4.4 of the Code concerning
independence of the collegial body elected by the general meeting from the company’s management bodies is applied to the extent
it concerns independence from the chief executive officer.

7 as . . ' B s . b . .
° Definitions 'executive director' and 'ron-executive director' nre used in cases when a company has only one collegial body.

* Attention should be drawn to the fact that in the situation where the collegial body elected by the peneral shareholders’ meeting is
the board, it is natural that being & management body it should ensure oversight not of nll management bodies of the company, but
only of the single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer. This note shall apply in respect of item
3.1 as well.



3.2, Names and sumames of the candidates to become members of a collegial body,
information about their education, qualification, professional background, positions
taken and potential conflicts of interest should be disclosed early enough before the
general shareholders’ meeting so that the shareholders would have sufficient time to
malke an informed voting decision, All factors affecting the candidate’s independence,
the sample list of which is set out in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed.
The collegial body should also be informed on any subsequent changes in the
provided information. The collegial body should, on yearly basis, collect data
provided in this item on its members and disclose this in the company’s annual report.

NA

The company belongs to  sole
shareholder

3.3, Should a person be nominated for members of a collegial body, such nomination
should be followed by the disclosure of information on candidate’s particular
competences relevant to his/her service on the collegial body. In order shareholders
and investors are able to ascertain whether member's competence is further relevant,
the collegial body should, in its annunl report, disclose the information on its
composition and particular competences of individual members which are relevant to
their service on the collegial body.

In the annual report there are no
diselosed board members
competences related 1o service in the
Board.

3.4, In order to maintain a proper balance in terms of the current qualifications
possessed by its members, the colleginl body should determine its desired
composition with regard to the company’s struclure and activities, and have this
periodically evaluated. The collegial body should ensure that it is composed of
members who, as a whole, have the required diversity of knowledge, judgment and
experience to complete their tasks properly. The members of the audit committee,
collectively, should have a recent knowledge and relevant experience in the fields of
finance, accounting and/or audit for the stock exchange listed companies.

Yes

Members of the Board have enough
competences and experience

3.5. All new members of the collegial bedy should be offered o tailored program
focused on introducing & member with his/her duties, corporate organization and
activities. The collegial body should conduct an annual review to identify fields
where ils members need to updale their skills and knowledge.

NA

3.6, In order to ensure that all material conflicts of interest related with a member of
the collegial body are resolved properly, the collegial body should comprise a
sufficient! number of independent’ members,

No

There are no independent members
in the Board,

3.7. A member of the collegial body should be considered to be independent only if
he is free of any business, family or other relationship with the company, its
controlling shareholder or the manegement of either, that creates a conflict of interest
such as to impair his judgment, Since all cases when member of the collegial body is
likely to become dependant are impossible to list, moreover, relationships and
circumstances associated with the determination of independence may vary amongst
companies and the best practices of solving this problem are yet to evolve in the
course of tirme, nssessment of independence of & member of the collegial body should
be based on the contents of the relatienship and circumstances rather than their form,
The key criteria [or identifying whether a member of the collegial body can be
considered to be independent are the following:

1} He/she is not an executive director or member of the board (if'a collegial body
elected by the peneral shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) of
the company or any associated company and has sol been such during the
last five years;

2) He/she is not an employee of the company or some any company and has not
been such during the last three years, except for cases when a member of

There are no independent members
in the Board,

* The Code does not provide for a concrete number of independent members to comprise a collegial body. Many codes in foreign
couniries fix a concrete number of independent members (e.g, at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members of the collegial body) to comprise
the collegial body. However, having regard to the novelty of the institution of independent members in Lithuania and potential
problems in finding and electing a concrete number of independent members, the Code provides for a more {lexible wording and
allows the companies themselves to decide what number of independent members is sufficient. Of course, a larger number of
independent members in a collegial body is encournged and will constitute an example of more suitable corporate governance.

* It is notable that in some companies all members of the coflegial body may, due to a very small number of minority shareholders,
be elected by the votes of the majority sharcholder or a few major shareholders, But even a member of the collegial body elected

by the majority shareholders may be considered independent if he/she meets the independence criteria set out in the Code.




the collegial body does not belong to the senior management and was
elected to the collegial body as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been nol receiving significant additional
remunerntion from the company or associnted company other than
remuneration for the office in the colleginl body. Such additional
remuneration includes participation in share options or some other
performance based pay systems; it does not include compensation paymenis
for the previous office in the company (provided that such payment is no
way related with Iater position) as per pension plans (inclusive of deferred
compensations);

4) He/she is net a controlling shareholder or representative of such shareholder
{control as defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EEC Article 1 Part 1);

3) He/she does not have and did not have any material business relations with
the company or associated company within the past year directly or a5 a
partner, shareholder, director or superior employee of the subject having
such relationship. A subject is considered to have business relations when it
is n major supplier or service provider (inclusive of financial, legal,
counseling and consulting services), major client or organization receiving
significant payments from the company or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the last three yeors, pariner or
employee of the current or former external audit company of the ¢company
or associated company;

7) Hefshe is not an executive director or member of the board in some other
company where executive director of the company or member of the board
{(if a collegial body elected by the general shareholders” meeting is the
supervisory beard) is non-executive director or member of the supervisory
board, hefshe may not also have any other material relationships with
executive directors of the company that arise from their participation in
activities of other companies or bodies;

8) Hefshe has not been in the position of n member of the collegial body for
over than 12 years,

9) He/she is not a close relative to an executive director or member of the board
(if u collegial body elected by the general shareholders® meeting is the
supervisory board} er io any person listed in above jtems 1 to 8. Close
relative is considered to be o spouse {(commen-law spouse), children and
parents,

3.8, The determination of what constitutes independence is fundamentally an issue for
the collegial body itsell to determine. The collegial body may decide that, despile a
particular member meets alf the criteria of independence Inid down in this Cade, he
cannot be considered independent due to special personal or company-related

circumstances.

There are no independent members
in the Board.

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the collegial body has come to in its
determination of whether a particular member of the body should be considered to be
independent should be disclosed. When a person is nominated to become a member of
the collegial body, the company should diselose whether it considers the person to be
independent. When a particular member of the collegial body does not meet one or
more criteria of independence set out in this Code, the company should disclose its
reasens [or neverlheless considering the member to be independent. In addition, the
company should annually disclose which members of the collegial body it considers
to be independent.

There are no independent members
in the Board.

3.10. When one or more criteria of independence set out in this Code has not been
met throughout the year, the company should disclose its rensons for considering a
particular member of the collegial body to be independent. To ensure accuracy of the
information disclosed in relation with the independence of the members of the
collegial bady, the company should require independent members to have their
independence perjodieally re-confirmed.

There are no independent members
in the Board.




3.1 In order to remunerate members of a collegial body for their work and
parlicipation in the meetings of the collegial body, they may be remunerated from the
company’s funds.®. The general shareholders’ meeting should approve the amount of

such remuneration.

NA

Principle }V: The duties and linbilities of a collegial body elected by the general sharcholders® meeting
The corporate povernance framework should ensure proper and effective functioning of the calleginl body elected by the general
sharehelders’ meeting, and the powers granted to the collegial body should ensure effective monitoring’ of the company's

management bodies and protection of interests of all the company’s shareholders.

4.1, The collegial body clected by the general shareholders’ meeting (hereinafter in
this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body') should ensure integrity and
transparency of the company’s financial statements and the control system. The
collegial body should issue recommendations to the company’s management bodies
and monitor and control the company’s management performance.”

Yes

Such functions are performed by the
Board

4.2, Members of the collegial boedy should act in good fnith, with care and
responsibility for the benefit and in the interests of the company and its shareholders
with due regard to the interests of employees and public welfare. Independent
members of the collegial body should (a) under all circumstances maintain
independence of their analysis, decision-making and actions (b) do not seek and
accept any unjustified privileges that might compromise their independence, and (¢)
clearly express their objections should a member consider that decision of the
collegial body is apainst the interests of the company. Should a collegial body have
passed decisions independent member has serious doubts about, the member should
make adequate conclusions. Should an independent member resign from his office, he
should explain the reasons in a letter addressed to the colleginl body or audit
commitiee and, if necessary, respective company-not-pertaining body (institution).

Yes

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time and attention to perform his duties as
a member of the collegin! body. Each member of the collegial body should limit other
professional obligations of his (in particular any directorships held in other
companies} in such a manner they do not interfere with proper performance of duties
of a member of the collegial body. In the event a member of the colleginl body should
be present in less than a half® of the meetings of the collegla] body throughout the
financial year of the company, shareholders of the company should be notified.

Yes

4.4. Where decisions of a colleginl body may have a different effect on the company’s
shareholders, the colleginl body should treat all shareholders impartially and fairly. It
should ensure that shareholders are properly informed on the company’s affairs,
strategies, risk management and resolution of conflicts of interest, The company
should have a clenrly established role of members of the collegial body when

communicating with and committing to sharehalders.

NA

Sole shareholder is a chairman of the
Board

®1t is notable that currently it is not yet complelely clear, in what form members of the supervisory board or the board may be
remunerated for their work in these bodies. The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-
5574) provides that members of the supervisery board or the board may be remunerated for their work in the supervisory board or
the board by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems} in the manner prescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. from the company’s
profit. The current wording, contrary to the wording effective before | January 2004, eliminates the exclusive requirement that
#nnuel bonuses (tantiems) should be the only form of the company’s compensation 1o members of the supervisory board or the
board. So it seems thal the Law contains no prohibition to remunerate members of the supervisory board ar the board for their
work in other forms, besides bonuses, although this possibility is not expressly stated either.

? See Foolnote 3.

¥ See Footnote 3, In the event the collegial body elected by the peneral shareholders’ meeling is the board, it should provide
recommendations to the company’s single-person body of management, i.e. the company's chief executive officer.

? 1t is notable that companies can make this requirement mare stringent and provide that shareholders should be informed about
failure to participate at the meetings of the collegial body if, for instance, a member of the collegial body participnted at less than
2/3 or 3/4 of the meetings. Such measures, which ensure active participation in the meetings of the collegial body, are encouraged
and will constituie an example of more suilable corporate governance.



4.3, 1t is recommended thal transactions (except insignificant ones due to their Jow
value or concluded when carrying out routine operations in the company under usual
conditions), concluded beiween the company and its sharcholders, members of the
supervisory or managing bodies or other natural or legal persons that exert or may
exert influence on the company’s management should be subject lo approval of the
collegial body. The decision concerning approval of such tronsactions should be
deemed adopted only provided the majority of the independent members of the
collegial body voted for such a decision.

NA

4.6, The collegial body should be independent in passing decisions that are significant
for the company’s operations and strategy. Taken separately, the collegial body
should be independent of the compeny’s management bodies'. Members of the
collegial body should act and pass decisions without an ontside influence from the
persons who have elected it. Companies should ensure that the collegial body and its
committees are provided with sufficient administrative and financial resources to
discharge their duties, including the right to obtain, in particular from employees of
the company, all the necessary information or to seek independent legal, accounting
or any other advice on issues pertaining to the competence of the collegial body and

its committees.

Yes

The Board is independent from CEQ

4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be organized in a manner that independent
members of the collegial body could have major influence in relevant areas where
chances of occurrence of conflicts of interest are very high. Such areas to be
considered as highly relevant are issues of nomination of company's directors,
determination of directors’ remuneration and control and assessment of company’s
sudit. Therefore when the mentioned issues are attributable to the competence of the
collegial body, it is recommended that the collegial body should establish nomination,
remuneration, and audit committees, Companies should ensure thal the functions
attributable to the nominalion, remuneration, and audit committees are carried out.
However they may decide to merge these functions and set up less than three
commitiees. In such cose a company should explain in detail reasons behind the
selection of alternative approach and how the selected approach complies with the
objectives set forth for the three different committees, Should the collegial body of
the company comprise small number of members, the functions assigned to the three
committees may be performed by the collegial body itself, provided that it meets
composition requirements advocated for the committees and that adequate
information is provided in this respect. In such case provisions of this Code relnting to
the committees of the colleginl body (in particular with respect to their role,
operation, and transparency) should apply, where relevant, 1o the collegial body ns a

whole.

No

Such functions are performed by the
Board within competence of the
Board.

4.8, The key objective of the committees is to incregse efficiency of the aclivities of
the collegial body by ensuring that decisions nre based on dug consideration, and to
help organize its work with a view to ensuring that the decisions it takes are free of
material conflicts of interest. Committees should present the collegial body with
recommendations concerning the decisions of the collegial body. Nevertheless the
final decision shall be adopted by the collegial body. The recommendation on
creation of committees is not intended, in principle, to constrict the competence of the
collegial body or to remove the matters considered from the purview of the collegial
body itself, which remains fully responsible for the decisions taken in its field of

competence,

There are no committees established.

4.9. Committees established by the coflegial body should normally be composed of at
least three members. In companies with small number of members of the collegial
body, they could exceptionally be composed of two members. Majority of the

No

There are no committees established.

" In the event the collegial body elected by the geneml shareholders’ meeting is the board, the recommendation concerning its
independence from the company’s manngement bodies applies to the extent it relates 1o the independence from the company's

chief executive officer.



members of each committee should be constituted from independent members of the
collegial body. In cases when the company chooses not to set up a supervisory board,
remuneration and audit committees should be entirely comprised of non-executive
directors. Chairmanship and membership of the committees should be decided with
due regard to the need to ensure that committee membership is refreshed and that
undue reliance is not placed on particular individuals.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should be determined by the collegial body.
Committees should perform their duties in line with authority delegated ta them and
inform the colleginl body on their activities and performance on regular basis.
Authority of every commitiee stipulating the role and rights and duties of the
commitiee should be made public at least once a year (a5 part of the information
disclosed by the company annually on its corporate povernance structures ond
practices). Companies should also make public annually a statement by existing
commitiees on their composition, number of meetings and aftendance over the year,
and their main activities. Audit committee should confirm that it is satisfied with the
independence of the audit process and describe briefly the actions it has taken (o reach

this conclusion.

No

There are no commitlees established.

4.11. In order to ensure independence and impartiality of the committees, members of
the collegial body that are not members of the committee should commonly have a
right to participate in the meetings of the committee only if invited by the committee.
A committee may invite or demand participation in the meeting of particular officers
or experts. Chairman of each of the commiltees should have 1 possibility to maintain
direct communication with the shareholders. Events when such are to be performed
should be specified in the regulations {or commitiee activities.

No

There are no committees established.

4,12, Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committee should be the following:

= Identify and recommend, for the approval of the collegial body, candidates to fill
board vacancies. The nomination commitiee should evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the management body, prepare a description of the
roles and capabilities required to assume a particular office, and assess the time
commitment expected. Nomination committee can also consider candidates to
members of the collegial body delegated by the shareholders of the company;

+ Assess on regular basis the structure, size, composition and performance of the
supervisory and management bodies, and make recommendations to the collegial
body regarding the means of achieving necessary changes;

* Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge and experience of individual directors
and report on this to the collegial body;

* Properly consider issues related to succession planning;

* Review the policy of the management bodies for selection and appoiniment of
senior manngement.

4.12,2, Nominntion committce should consider proposals by other parties, including
management and shareholders. When desling with issues related to executive
directors or members of the boeard (if a collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) and senior management, chief
executive officer of the company should be consulted by, and entitled to submit
proposals to the nomination committee,

There is no such committee

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration committee should be the following:

* Make proposals, for the approval of the collegial body, on e remuneration policy
for members of management bodies and executive directors. Such policy should
address wll forms of compensation, including the fixed remuneration, performance-
bosed remuneration schemes, pension arrangements, and termination payments.
Proposals considering performance-based remuneration schemes should be
accompanied with recommendations on the related objectives and evaluation criteria,
with n view to properly aligning the pay of executive director and members of the
management bodies with the long-term interests of the shareholders and the
objectives set by the collegial bady;

» Make proposals to the colleginl body on the individual remuneration for executive
directors and member of management bodies in order their remunerations are
consistent with company’s remuneration policy and the evaluation of the performance
of these persons concerned. In doing so, the committee should be properly informed

There is no such commitiee




on the tolal compensation obtained by executive directors and members of Lhe
management bodies from the affiliated companies;

* Make proposals to the collegial body on suitable forms of contracts for executive
directors and members of the management bodjes;

» Assist the colleginl body in overseeing how the company complies with applicable
provisions regarding the remuneration-relaled information disclosure {in particular the
remuneration policy applied and individual remuneration of directors);

» Make general recommendations to the executive directors and members of the
management bodies on the level and structure of remuneration for senior management
(as defined by the collegial body) with regard to the respective information provided
by the executive direciors and members of the monagement bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and ather share-based incentives which may be
granted to directors or other employees, the committee should:

+ Consider general policy regarding the granting of the ubove mentjoned schemes, in
particular stock options, and make any related proposals to the collegiat body;

* Examine the related information that is given in the company’s annual report and
documernits intended for the use during the shareholders meeting;

* Make proposals to the collegial body regarding Lhe choice between granting options
to subscribe shares or granting options to purchose shares, specifying the reasons for
its choice as well s the consequences that this choice has.

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues atiributable to the competence of the
remuneration committee, the commitiee should at least address the chairman of the
collegial body and/or chief executive officer of the company for their opinion on the
remuneration of other executive directors or members of the management bodies,

4,14, Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee should be (he following:

= Observe the integrity of the financial information provided by the company, in
particular by reviewing the relevance and consistency of the sccounting methods used
by the company and its group (including the criteria for the consolidation of the
accounts of companies in the group);

* At least once a year review the systems of internal control and risk manngement to
ensure that the key risks {inclusive of the risks in relation with compliance with
existing laws and regulations) are properly identified, managed and reflected in the
information provided;

« Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit function, among other things, by making
recommendations on the selection, appointment, reappointment and removal of the
head of the internal audit department and on the budget of the department, and by
monitoring  the responsiveness of the management to its findings and
recommendations, Should there be no internal audit authority in the company, the
need for one should be reviewed at least annually;

« Make recommendations to the collegial body related with selection, appainiment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor (to be done by the genernl
shareholders” meeting) and with the terms and conditions of his engngement. The
commitiee should investigate situations that lead to o resipnation of the audit
company or auditor and make recommendations on required actions in such
situations;

* Monitor independence and impartiality of the external auditor, in particular by
reviewing the audit company’s compliance with applicable guidance relating to the
ratation of audit partners, the level of fees paid by the comparny, and similar issues. In
order to prevent occurrence of material conflicts of interest, the committee, based on
the auditor’s disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations paid by the company ta the
auditor and network, should at all times monitor nature and extent of the non-audit
services. Having regard to the principals and puidelines estsblished in the 16 May
2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/590/EC, the committee should determine
and apply o formal pelicy establishing types of non-audit services that are (a)
excluded, {b) permissible only after review by the committee, and (c) permissible
without referral to the committee;

* Review efficiency of the external nudit process and responsiveness of management
to recommendations made in the external auditor’s management letter,

4.14.2. All members of the committee should be furnished with complete information
on particulars of accounting, finaneinl and other operations of the company.
Company’s management should inform the audit committee of the methods used to
account [or significant and unusual transactions where the accounting treatment may
be open to different approaches. In such case n special consideration should be given
ko company’s operations in offShore centers and/or activities carried out through
special purpose vehicles (organizations) and justification of such operations,

There is no such committee




4.14.3, The audit committee should decide whether participation of the chairman of
the collegial body, chief executive officer of the company, chief financial officer (or
superior employees in charge of finances, trensury and accounting), or internal and
external auditors in the meetings of the committee is required (if required, when). The
committee should be entitled, when needed, 10 meet with any relevant person without
executive directors and members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should be secured with not only effective
working relationship with management, but also with free access to the collegial
body. For this purpose the audit committee should act as the principal contact person
for the interna] and external auditors.

4,14.5. The audit committee should be informed of the internal auditor's work
program, and should be furnished with internal audit’s reporis or periodic summaries.
The audit committee should alse be informed of the work program of the external
auditor and should be furnished with report disclosing all telationships between the
independent auditor and the company and its group. The committee should be timely
furnished information on all issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whether the company is following
applicable provisions regarding the pessibility for employees to report alleged
significant irregularities in the company, by way of complaints or through anonymous
submissions {normally to an independent member of the collegial body}, and should
ensure that there is a procedure established for propoertionate and independent
investigation of these issues and for appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its activities to the collegial body at
least once in every six months, at the time the yearly and half-yearly statements ore

approved.

4,13, Every year the collegial body should conduet the assessment of its aclivities.
The nssessment should include evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work
organization and ability 1o act as a group, evaluation of each of the collegial body
member’s and committee’s competence and work efficiency and assessment whether
the collegial body has achieved its objectives. The collegial body should, at least once
a year, make public (as part of the information the company annually discloses on its
management structures and practices) respective information on its internal
organization and working procedures, and specify what material changes were made
as a result of the assessment of the eollegial body of its own activities.

The Board does not make assessment
of own activities,

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’s collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and management bodies established in the company shounld ensure efficient operation of
these bodies and decision-making and encournge active co-operation between the company’s bodies.

5.1. The company’s supervisory and management bodies (hereinafter in this Principle
the concept ‘collegial bodies’ covers both the collegial bodies of supervision and the
collegial bodies of management) should be chaired by chairpersons of these bodies.
The chairperson of a collegial body is responsible for proper convocation of the
collegial body meetings. The chairpersen should ensure that information about the
meeting being convened and its agenda are communicated to all members of the
body. The chairperson of a collegial body should ensure appropriate conducting of the
meetings of the colleginl body. The chairperson should ensure order and working
atrmnesphere during the meeting,.

Yes

The meetings of the Board are held
regularly.




3.2, It is recommended that meetings of the company’s collegial bodies should be
carried out according to the schedule approved in advance al certain intervals of time.
Each company is free to decide how often lo convene meetings of the collegial
bodies, but it is recommended that these meetings should be convened at such
intervals, which would guarantee an interrupted resolution of the essential corporate
governance {ssues. Meetings of the company’s supervisory board should be convened
at least once in a quarter, and the company’s board should meet at least once o
month'".

Yes

The meetings of the Board are held
regularly.

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notified about the meeting being
convened in ndvance in order to allow sufficient time for proper preparation for the
issues on the agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful discussion and adoption of
approprinte decisions. Alongside with the notice about the meeting being convened,
all the documents relevant {o the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be
submitted to the members of the collegial body. The agenda of the meeting should not
be changed or supplemented during the meeting, unfess all members of the collegial
body are present or certain issues of great imporiance to the company require

immediate resolution.

3.4, In order to co-ordinate operation of the company’s collegial bodies and ensure
effeclive decision-making process, chairpersons of the company’s collegial bodies of
supervision and management should closely co-operate by co-coordinating dales of
the meetings, their agendas and resolving other issues of corporate governance.
Members of the company’s board should be free to attend meetings of the company’s
supervisory board, especially where issues concerning removal of the board mermbers,

their liability or remuneration are discussed.

There is no supervisory council

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholders and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should ensure the equitnble trestment of all shareholders, including minority and foreign
shareholders. The corporate governance framework should protect the rights of the shareholders.

6.1. It is recommended that the company’s capital should consist enly of the shares | Yes The authorised capital consists of
that grant the same rights to voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to all their ordinary registered shares granting
holders. equal voting rights.

6.2, It is recommended that investors should have access to the information | NA The company effects  public
concerning the rights attached to the shares of the new issue or those issued earlier in plecement of bonds only.

advance, i.e, before they purchase shares.

6.3, Transactions that are important to the company and its shareholders, such as | Yes Transactions  important  to  the

transier, investment, and pledpe of the company’s assets or any other type of
encumbrance should be subject to approval of the general sharcholders’ meeting. ™
All shareholders should be furnished with equal opportunity to familiarize with and
participate in the decision-making process when significant corporate issues,
including approval of transactions referred to above, are discussed,

company and its shareholders are
approved by the Board. Chairman of
the Board is a sole sharcholder of the
company.

' The frequency of meetings of the collegial body provided for in the recommendation must be applied in those cases when both
additional collegial bodies are formed at the company, the board and the supervisory board. In the event only one additional
collegial body is formed in the company, the frequency of its meetings may be as established for the supervisory board, i.c. at least

once in a quarter.

2 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutions
concerning the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or acquisition of the long-terms assels accounting for more than 1/20 of the
company’s authorised capital to the competence of the general shareholders’ meeting. However, transactions that are important and
material for the company’s activity should be considered and approved by the general shareholders® meeting. The Law on
Companies contains no prohibition to this effect either. Yet, in order not to encumber the company’s activity and escape an
unreasonably frequent consideration of transactions at the meetings, companies are free to establish their own criteria of material
transactions, which are subject to the approval of the meeting. While establishing these criteria of material transactions, companies
may follow the criteria set out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Article 34 of the Law on Companies or derogate from them
in view of lhe specific nature of their operation and their attempt to ensure uninterrupted, efficient functioning of the company.




|. Procedures of convening and conducting a general share
sure equal opporiunities for the sharcholders to effectively participate ot the
setings and should not prejudice the rights and interests of the shareholders. The
nue, date, and time of the shareholders’ meeting should not hinder wide attendance
 he sharcholders. Prior to the shareholders’ meeting, the company’s SUpervisory
«d management bodies should enable the shareholders to lodge questions on issues
1 the agenda of the general sharehalders’ meeting and receive answers to them.

5. It is recommended that documents on the course of the general shareholders’
iecting, including draft resolutions of the meeting, should be placed on the publicly
scessible website of the company in advance™. 1t is recommended that the minutes
{ the general shareholders’ meeting after signing them and/or adopled resolutions
hould be also placed on the publicly accessible website of the company. Seeking to
nsure the right of foreigners to familiarize with the information, whenever feasible,
locuments referred to in this recommendation should be published in English andfor
sther foreign languages. Documents referred @ in this recommendation may be
jublished on the publicly accessible website of the company to the extent that
sublishing of these documents is pot detrimental to the company or the company’s
ommercial secrets are nat revenled.
5.6. Sharehalders should be turnished with the opportunity to vote in the general
sharcholders” meeting in person and in absentin. Shareholders should not be
prevented from voting in writing in advance by completing the general voting ballot.
67. With a view to increasing the sharcholders’ opportunities 10 participate
effectively at sharcholders’ meetings, the companies are recommended to expand use
of modern technologies in voting processes by allowing the sharchoiders to vote in
general meetings via terminal equipment of telecommunications. In such cases
security ol telecommunication equipment, text protection and u possibility to identify
the signature of the voting person should be guaranteed. Moreover, compnnies could
furnish its shareholders, especially foreigners, with the opportunity to watch

shareholder meetings by means of modern technologies.

holders’ meeting should | NA The company belongs to 2 sole

shareholder

NA The company belongs 10 # sole

shareholder

NA The company belongs 10 a sole

shareholder

NA The company belongs 1o 2 sole

shareholder

Principle VIL: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encourage members of the corpor
transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest regar

7.1. Any member of the company's Supervisory and management body should aveid a
situation, in which his/her personal interests are in conflict or may be in conflict with
the company’s interests. In case such a situntion did occur, 8 member of the
company's Supervisory and management body should, within rensonable time, inform
other members of the same collegial body or the company’s body that has elected
him/her, or ta the company’s shareholders about sityation of a conflict of interest,
indicate the nature of the conflict and value, where possible.

ate bodies to aveid conflicts of interest and assure
ding members of the corporate bodies.

Yes There were no such cases

7.2. Any member of the company's Supervisory and management body may not mix
the company’s assets, the use of which has not heen mutually sgreed upon, with
hisfher personal assets or use them or the information which hefshe learns by virtue of
hisfher position as 8 member of a corporate body for his/her personal benefit of for
the benefit of nay third person without a prior agreement of the general shareholders’

1 The documents reforred to above should be placed on the company’s websit

before the general shareholders’ meeling, determined in paragraph 7 of Article
Lithuania (Official Gazette, 7003, No 123-3574).

| meeting or any other corporate body authorized by the meeting.

Yes There were no such cases

e in advance with due regard to a 10-day period
26 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of



3. Any member of the company’s SUpervis
transaction with the company, o member

1ch a transaction (except insignifican
hen carrying oul routine operations in

nmediately reported in writing or orally,

jeeting, to other members of the same

as elected him/her or to the company’s shareholders.
1o recommendation 4.5.

acommendation are also subject

of a corporate body of which hefshe is.
{ ones due to their low value of concluded
the company under usual conditions) must be
by recording this in the minutes of the
corporate body or Lo the corporate body that
Transactions specified in this

ory and management body may conclude | Yes There were no such cases

4. Any member of the company's supervisory and management body should abstain
rom voting when decisions concerning fransactions or other issues of personal or

yusiness interest are voted on,

N -

Principle VILI: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy a

should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in
both of company’s remuneration

publicity and transparency

determining remuneration of directors,
policy nnd remuneration of divectors.

nd procedure for spproval, revision and disclosure of directors’ remuneration established in the company
in nddition it should ensure

8.1. A company should make o publi

policy {hereinafter the remuneration statement). This statement should be part of the
Remuneration statement should also be posted on the

company’s annual accounts.
company's website.

No Such  information

confidential

¢ statement of the company’s remuneration

is treated as

8.2. Remuneration siatement should mainly focus on directors’ remuneration policy

for the following year and, if approprinte,

contain a summary of the implementati

financial year. Special attention should be given io any significant changes in
company’s remuneration policy as compared to the previous financinl year.

Such information

confidential

No

{he subsequent years. The statement should

on of the remuneration policy in the previous

is treated as

£.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise include the following information:
+ Explanation of the relative importance of the variable and non-varinble components

of directors’ remuneration;

« Sufficient information on performance criterin
options, shares ar variable components of remuneration;
+ Sufficient information on the linkage between
« The main parameters and rationale for any annual bonus scheme and any other non-

cash benefits;

« A description ef the main characteristies of supplementary

retirement schemes for directors.

Such information

confidential

No

that entitles directors to share

the remuneration and performance;

pension or early

is ftrented as

8.4, Remuneration statement should also summarize and explain company’s policy

regarding the terms of the contracts exe

the management bodies. It should inciude,

contracts with executive directors an

applicable notice periods and details of provisions
enrly termination under contracts for executive

management bodies.

Such  information

cuted with executive directors and members of confidentinl

inter aliz, information on the duration of
d members of the management bodies, the
{or termination payments linked to

directors and members of the

8.5. The information on preparatory and decision-making processes, during which a
policy of remuneration of direetors is being established, should also be disclosed.
Information should include data, if applicable, on authorities and composition of the
remuneration committee, names and surnames of external consultants whose services
have been used in determination of the remuneration policy as well as the role of

shareholders’ annual genernl meeting.

is treated as

8.6. Without prejudice to the role and organization of the relevant bodies responsible

for sctting directors’ remuneralions, th

change in remuneration policy should be

annual general meeting. Remunerati

shareholders” annual general meeting. The vote may be either mandatory or advisory.

Such  information

e remuneration policy or say other significant confidential

included into the agenda of the shareholders’
on statement should be put for voting in

is treated 8BS

L




8.7. Remuneration stalement should also contain detailed information on the entire
amount of rermuneration, inclusive of other benefits, that was paid to individval
directors over the relevant financial year. This document should Iist at least the
information set out in items 8.7.1 to 8.7.4 for each person who has served as a director
of the company at any time during the relevant financial year.

8.7.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments-refated information should be
disclosed:

= The total amount of remuneration paid or due to the director for services performed
during the relevant financial year, inclusive of, where relevant, atiendance fees fixed
by the annunl general shareholders meeting;

+ The remuneration and advantages received from any undertaking belonging to the
Same group;

* The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing and/or bonus payments and the
reasons why such bonus payments and/or profit sharing were granted;

» If permissible by the law, any significant additional remuneration paid to directors
for special services outside the scope of the usual functions of s director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each former executive director or member of the
management body as a result of his resignation from the office during the previous
financial year;

 Total estimated value of non-cash benefits considered as remuneration, other than
the items covered in the above points.

8.7.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acquire share oplions and/or all other share-
incentive schemes, the following information should be disclosed:

« The number of share options offered or shares granted by the company during the
relevant financial year and their conditions of application;

* The number of shares oplions exercised during the relevant financial year and, for
each of them, the number of shares involved and the exercise price or the value of the
interest in the share incentive scheme at the end of the financial year;

» The number of share options unexercised at the end of the financial year; their
exercise price, the exercise date and the main conditions for the exercise of the rights;
» All changes in the terms and conditions of existing share options occurring during
the financial year.

8.7.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-related information should be
disclosed:

» When the pension scheme is a defined-benefit scheme, changes in the directors’
accrued benefits under that scheme during the relevant financial year;

= When the pension scheme is defined-contribution scheme, detailed information on
contributions paid or payable by the company in respect of that director during the
relevant financial year.

8.7.4, The statement should also state amounts that the company or any subsidiary
company or entity included in the consolidated annual financial statements of the
company has paid to each person who has served as a director in the company at any
time during the relevant financial year in the form of loans, advance payments or

guarantecs, including the amount outstanding and the interest rate.

No

Such information s
conlidential

treated as

8.8. Schemes anticipating remuneration of directors in shares, share options or any
other right to purchase shares or be remunerated on the basis of share price
movements should be subject to the prior approval of shareholders™ annual general
meeting by way ol a resolution prior to their adoption. The approval of scheme should
be related with the scheme itself and not to the grant of such share-based benefits
under that scheme to individual directors. All significant changes in scheme
provisions should also be subject to shareholders’ approval prior to their adoption; the
approval decision should be made in shareholders’ annual general meeting, In such
cuse shareholders should be notified on all terms of suggested changes and get an
explanation on the impact of the suppested changes.

NA

There is no such practice




8.9. The following issues should be subjecl to approvat by the sharehelders’ annual NA There is no such practice.
seneral meeting:

» Grant of share-based schemes, including share options, to directors;

» Determination of maximum number of shares and main conditions of share
granting;

= The term within which oplions can be exercised;

« The conditions for any subsequent change in the exercise of the opiions, if
permissible by law;

« All other long-term incentive schemes for which directors are eligible and which are
not available to other employees of the company under similar terms. Annual general
meeling should also set the dendline within which the body respansible for
remuneration of dircctors may award compensations listed in this article to individual
directars.

8.10. Should national law or company’s Articles of Association nllow, any discounted | NA There is no such practice,
option srrangement under which any rights are granted to subscribe to shares al a
price lower than the market value of the share prevailing on the doy of the price
determination, or the average of the market values over a number of days preceding
the date when the exercise price is determined, should also be subject to the
sharsholders’ approval,

8.11. Provisions of Articles 8.8 and 8.9 should not be applicable to schemes allowing | NA There is no such practice
for participation under similar conditions to company’s employees or employees of
any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible to participate in the scheme
and which has been approved in the shareholders’ annual general meeting.

8.12. Prior to the annual general meeting that is intended to consider decision | No There is no such practice.
stipulated in Article 8.8, ihe shareholders must be provided an opportunity to
familinrize with draft resolution and project-related notice (the documents should be
posted on the company’s website). The notice should contain the full text of the
share-bnsed remuneration schemes or a description of their key terms, as well as full
names of the participants in the schemes. Notice should alsa specify the relationship
of the schemes and the overall remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resolution
must have a clear reference o the scheme itseff or to the summary of its key terms,
Shareholders must also be presented with information on how the company intends to
pravide for the shares required to meet its obligations under incentive schemes, It
should be clearly stated whether the company intends to buy shares in the market,
hold the shares in reserve or issuc new ones, There should also be a summary on
scheme-related expenses the company will suffer due to the anticipated application of
the scheme. All information given in this article must be posted on the company’s
website.

Principle IX: The role of stnkeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders ns established by law and encourage active co-
operation between companies and stakehalders in creating the company value, jobs and financial sustainahbility. For the purposes of
this Prineiple, the concept “stakeholders” includes investors, employees, creditors, suppliers, clients, local community and other

persons having certain interest in the company concerned.

9.1, The corporate governance framework should assure that the rights of | Yes
stakehelders that are protected by law are respected.

92. The corporate governance framework should create conditions for the
stakeholders fo participate in corporate governance in the manner prescribed by law.
Examples of mechanisms of stakeholder participation in corporate governance
include: employee participation in adoption of certain key decisions for the company;
consulting the employees on corporate governance and other important issues;
employee participation in the company’s share capital; creditor involvement in
governance in the context of the company’s insolvency, elc.




9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corporate governance process, they should
have access to relevant information.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure that timely and accurate disclosure is made on all material information

regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and governance of the company,

10.1. The company should disclose information on:

* The financial and operating results of the company;

* Company objectives;

* Persons holding by the right of ownership or in control of a block of shares in the
company;

» Members of the company’s supervisory and management bodies, chief execulive
offtcer of the company and their remuneration;

= Material foreseeable risk laclors;

* Transactions between the company and connected persons, as well as transactions
concluded outside the course of the company’s regular operations;

+ Material issues regarding employees and other stakeholders;

« Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed us a minimum recommendation, while the companies are
encouraged not to limit themselves to disclosure of the information specified in this

list.

Yes

The information is publicly disclosed

[0.2. It is recommended that consolidated results of the whole group to which the
company belonpgs should be disclosed when information specified in item 1 of
Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure,

Yes

103, It is recommended that information on the professional background,
qualifications of the members of supervisory and mansgement bodies, chiel execulive
officer of the company should be disclosed as well as potential conflicts of interest
that may have an effect on their decisions when information specified in item 4 of
Recommendation 10.1 about the members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies is under disclosure. It is also recommended that information
about the amount of remuneration received from the company and other income
should be disclosed with regard to members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies and chief executive officer as per Principle VIIL

Remuneration and other income is
treated as conlidential information

10.4. It is recommended that information about the links between the company and its
siekeholders, including employees, creditors, suppliers, local community, as well as
the company’s policy with regard to human resources, employee participation
schemes in the company’s share capital, etc, should be disclosed when information
specified in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure,

No

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a way that neither shareholders nor
investors are discriminated with regard to the manner or scope of access to
information, Information should be disclosed to all simultaneously, It is
recommended that notices about material events should be announced before or after
a trading session on the Vilnius Stock Exchange, so that ail the company’s
shareholders and investors should have equal access to the information and make
informed investing decisions,

Yes

Website, press releases, press
conferences,  announcements  on

major events.

10.6. Channels for disseminating information should provide for fair, timely and cost-
efficient access to relevant information by users. It is recommended that information
technologies should be employed for wider dissemination of information, for
instance, by placing the information on the company’s website. It is recommended
that information should be published and placed on the company’s website not only in
Lithuanian, but also in English, and, whenever possible and necessary, in other
languages as well.

Yes

Information provided in Lithuanian
and English




0.7. 1t is recommended that the company’s annual Teports and other periodical
wccounts prepared by the company should be placed on the company’s website. Tt is
-ecommended that the compaay should announce information about material events
md changes in the price of the company's sharcs onl the Stock Exchange on the

zompany’s website to0.
Principle XI: The sclection of the company’s auditor

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of auditor’s conclusion and

opinion.

11.1. An onpual audit of the company’s financial statements and report shouid be | Yes

conducted by an independent firm of auditors in order to pravide an external and

objective opinion on the company’s financial statements.

11.2. 1t is recommended that the company’s Supervisory board and, where it is not set Yes
up, the company’s boiard should propose a candidate firm of nuditors 10 the general

sharehaolders’ meeting.

11.3. It is recommended that the company should disclose to its shareholders the level | NA
of fees paid to the firm of auditors for non-oudit services rendered to the company.
This information should be also known to the company’s supervisory board and,
where it is not formed, the compuny’s board upon their consideration which firm af
anditors to propose for the general shareholders’ meeting.

L
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